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Bermuda
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OTHER PLACES OF BUSINESS
HONG KONG AND MACAU
Retail shops

G/F, 716 Shanghai Street
Mongkok, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2395 0181
Fax: (852) 2787 3421

G/F, 10 Tak Wah Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2473 3660

Fax: (852) 2442 2766

G/F, 102 Thomson Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2866 6001
Fax: (852) 2866 6339

Rua Da Ribeira Do Patane No. 13, Macau
Tel: (853) 2855 3693
Fax: (853) 2895 1020

Warehouse

Sections M and N of Lot 3719 in DD104
Yuen Long, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2471 9048

Fax: (852) 2482 1298

WEBSITE

http://www.chinapipegroup.com
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to our shareholders the annual report of
China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s revenue of about HK$714.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$636.5 million), representing
an increase of 12.2% as compared to last year. The gross
profit margin was approximately 27.3% for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: 27.5%). The profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$58.4 million for the year
under review (2022: HK$49.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 18.7% over last year. Basic earnings per share was
HK4.38 cents (2022: HK3.69 cents).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has achieved a new high sales record during the
year under review. The Group recorded revenue amounted
to approximately HK$714.1 million (2022: HK$636.5 million),
representing an increase of 12.2% over last year. Thanks to the
Hong Kong government’s efforts to address the long-running
housing shortage, our Group has been able to capitalize on
the opportunities presented by the government’s investment
in infrastructure and housing projects, and our sales have
benefited accordingly. As a result, we have witnessed remarkable
performance. Furthermore, we have experienced increased bank
interest income as the saving interest rate rose during the year.
This has contributed to our overall financial performance and
added to our success. The profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company was HK$58.4 million, as compared to a net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$49.2 million for the same period in 2022, representing an
increase of 18.7%.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EN T80

In addition, we have been working hard to optimize our internal
processes and improve operational efficiency. We implemented
a new enterprise resource planning system, which has helped
us to streamline our operations and also enhanced our ability to
respond to customer demands promptly.

Additionally, our efforts to diversify our product portfolio have
paid off. We have successfully launched several new products,
including the OPAL copper hose and a full range of valves. These
additions have not only strengthened our product advantages but
also enhanced our competitiveness in the market. By continuously
innovating and expanding our offerings, we have positioned
ourselves as a reliable and comprehensive supplier in the industry.

Collaboration has been a key focus for us, and we have
strengthened our partnerships with major local and mainland
suppliers and contractors. This increased cooperation has yielded
remarkable results, allowing us to access a wider range of
resources and expertise. By working closely with our partners, we
have been able to deliver high-quality products and services to our
customers.

To expand our market coverage and provide more convenient
services, we have recently re-opened a new store in Tsuen Wan.
This strategic move will enable us to reach a broader customer
base and capitalize on the growing demand in the area. We
remain committed to delivering exceptional customer experiences
and solidifying our position as a market leader.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Despite our achievements, we acknowledge the challenges posed
by the shortage of labor and rising prices. These factors require us
to remain vigilant and adopt a prudent strategy. We are confident,
however, that our strong foundation and proactive approach will
enable us to navigate these challenges effectively.

Looking ahead, we are positive about the outlook of the
construction industry in Hong Kong. The government'’s continued
investment in housing and infrastructure projects, coupled
with the anticipated growth in the industry, bodes well for our
future prospects. We are well-positioned to benefit from these
developments and will continue to capitalize on the opportunities
that arise.
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APPRECIATION

In closing, we thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers
and banks for their continuous support and confidence in the
Group. | would also like to thank our directors, management
team and employees for their commendable efforts and valuable
contribution to the Group over the years.

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Mission and Strategy
i v B SR

The business of the Group was commenced in 1949 as a pipe’s
retail shop. Now the Group has developed into a sizeable
company and become a listed company in the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 December 2000. We
root in Hong Kong 74 years and are the mainstay of the industry.

The principal business of the Group is the importing and selling
of a comprehensive range of pipes, fittings and other related
accessories of different materials, applications and brand names in
Hong Kong by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee"). Sales
of the Group’s products are conducted either by wholesale or
retail sale. We offered quality goods storage and logistic services
for local main contractors and landlords. Throughout the years,
the Group has supplied quality piping materials to many landmark
projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

The mission of the Group is to provide high quality products to
the customers and serve with value-added and excellent customer
services.

In attaining the above, we provide “one-stop-shop” platform that
provides high quality and a variety of pipes and fittings that readily
available to our customers in ways that meet their needs and

exceed their expectations.

Whenever you think pipes and fittings, think Bun Kee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Our Business

The Group is a leading provider to the construction sector offering
a wide range of pipe (including copper tube, ductile iron and
steel pipes) related products, fittings, comprehensive services
and solutions to the contractors, designers, consultants and
government agencies in Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group's core business lies with our flagship subsidiary, Bun
Kee (International) Limited, a well-established company with a
long history. Starting from a small retail shop, we grew up to a
company listed in Hong Kong. We have become one-stop supplier
of a comprehensive range of pipes and fittings. The Group has
built a good reputation for the pipes and fittings business in Hong
Kong and Macau. We have established stable major customer and
supplier bases over the years.

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group has achieved
encouraging results, marked by historically high sales. This
accomplishment can be attributed to the government'’s strong
commitment to addressing the long-standing housing shortage.
With numerous public and private sector projects in the pipeline,
along with substantial government investments in infrastructure
and housing, we have seized the opportunities presented by these
initiatives.

In recent years, the use of Modular Integrated Construction
("MiC") and Multi-trade Integrated MEP (“MiMEP"”) has gained
immense popularity. These innovative approaches have enabled
contractors to streamline their construction processes, resulting
in improved efficiency and cost-effectiveness. By seizing this
opportunity, we have been able to capitalise on the increased
demand for the pipes and fittings.

Expanding our market coverage and providing convenient services
to our customers remains a priority for us. In this regard, we have
successfully re-opened a new store in Tsuen Wan, enabling us to
reach a wider customer base and provide them with convenient
services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B o i B o3 e

The Group’s revenue increased by 12.2% to HK$714.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$636.5 million).
The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$58.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$49.2 million), representing an increase of 18.7%.

For the year under review, other gains, net were about HK$1.2
million (2022: HK$4.1 million), representing a decrease of HK$2.9
million over last year. The decrease was mainly due to there were
no subsidies granted by the Hong Kong Government under the
Anti-epidemic Fund during the year under review.

The Group's selling and distribution costs increased by 21.8%
year-on-year from HK$19.7 million in 2022 to HK$24.0 million
in 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to the increase
in promotion, transportation costs, sales commission and direct
logistic staff costs. The Group’s general and administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$109.2 million in 2023
(2022: HK$101.4 million), representing an increase of about 7.7 %
year-on-year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in staff
costs, testing fees, depreciation and insurance which were partly
offset by the decrease in professional fees and short-term and
low-value lease expenses.

Finance costs mainly consisted of the interest expenses on bank
borrowings and lease liabilities. During the year, the finance costs
were HK$6.7 million (2022: HK$5.9 million), representing an
increase by about 13.6% over last year. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in interest rates on bank borrowings.
Finance income which was mainly from a loan to a related
party and bank deposits’ interest income, increased by 103.1%
from HK$6.4 million in 2022 to HK$13.0 million in 2023 due to
the increase in bank deposits interest rates. As finance income
outpaced costs, we recorded net finance income of HK$6.2
million (2022: HK$0.5 million).

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic about Hong
Kong's construction industry. The ongoing development of
the Northern Metropolis and the Hong Kong government’s
commitment to accelerate housing supply are positive indicators
for future growth. These initiatives signal sustained demand for
building materials, which bodes well for our business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, the cash and bank balances of the
Group were approximately HK$275.2 million (2022: HK$252.5
million) including pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$46.0 million (2022: HK$46.0 million) and restricted bank
balances of approximately HK$1.1 million (2022: Nil). Basically
the Group’s working capital requirement has been financed by its
internal resources. The funds generated from operations and the
available banking facilities will enable the Group to meet its future
working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities for trade finance of approximately HK$312.3 million
(2022: HK$262.3 million), approximately HK$66.6 million (2022:
HK$54.5 million) was utilised. The Group's total borrowings stood
at approximately HK$62.2 million (2022: HK$53.4 million), the
entire amount of borrowings for both years end will mature within
one year. 36% (2022: 46%) and 64% (2022: 54%) of borrowings
were subject to floating and fixed rates respectively.

The gearing ratio as measured by total bank borrowings to total
equity was approximately 8.5% as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
7.9%).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the entire amount of the
Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong Kong
dollar, Macau Pataca, Renminbi and United States dollar. In order
to manage foreign exchange risk, the Group has been closely
monitoring its foreign currency exposure and will arrange for any
hedging facilities if necessary.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, certain bank deposits held by
subsidiaries of the Group with aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$46.0 million (2022: bank deposits of HK$46.0
million) were pledged to banks for banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2023 and2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B o i B o3 e

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have capital
commitments (2022: HK$0.533 million) contracted for but not
provided for in consolidated financial statements.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of 164 full-
time employees (2022: 155). Total employee benefit expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately HK$75.9
million (2022: HK$65.7 million).

Remuneration policy is reviewed annually and certain staff
members are entitled to sales commission. In addition to the basic
salaries and contributions to the mandatory provident fund, the
Group also pays discretionary bonus and provides staff with other
benefits including medical scheme to the employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme
established by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group in Mainland China. The Group adopted a
share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to motivate the eligible directors and employees of the
Group in recognition of their contributions to the Group.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

BARESE

N-ZB-=F+_"A=+—0 " A&£EXAE
FEMAR(ZE==4 : 533,000 L) 18
MARPR A P RRBENEAFIE -

BT REHFMBR

MNZB-_=%F+_-A=+—0 ~"&EE#E
F16482BET(ZE -4 : 1555) ' &
BT+ -A=+—HIEFE BI
TR 2 £ 4975,900,000 7T (Z B —4F ¢
65,700,000587T) °

FMEESFERT K BHEITANE
BRWA - BEBIR T ZTAEAH SRR
HEHFON - A EE IR IS AL IR
BSHAIS AR - ARER—Bh D@
B FT R ST 0 BRI - BORAR
SHBIFEAE AR EEBE RARES D
PRI B TIRESRICERIE(E - A%
A —ERAES - ARAREA S
EERESREEHRBH - ARHHUA
IR BE -



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lai Fulin, aged 58, acted as an Executive Director of the
Company from October 2009 to May 2017 and continued to sit
on the senior management team of the Group thereafter. Mr.
Lai rejoined the Board as an Executive Director of the Company
on 27 November 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board with effect from 30 March 2018. He is also a member
of the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. Lai
is the Head of Production & Purchasing of the Group and holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai has
over 20 years of experience in the banking sector, investment
management and general management of companies in China.
Mr. Lai worked in the Bank of China in Shenzhen from 1986 to
2001. From 1995 to 2001, he was the deputy general manager
of a subsidiary of Bank of China dealing with businesses in the
securities industry. During the period from 2002 to 2008, Mr. Lai
was the general manager of Shenzhen Huaao Guanli Technologies
Company Limited*(RIITMERE W EXEEFRAE]). Mr.
Lai holds a certificate of graduation in Chinese Language from
Shenzhen Institute of Education*(&YI1Z0 5 2557).

Mr. Lai is the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

* For identification purpose only

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, aged 59, was appointed as Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in May 2009.
Mr. Yu is responsible for managing overall daily operations of
the Group and the implementation of the Group’s development
strategies.

Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in investment
management, investment banking and general management of
listed companies. Mr. Yu began his career at Mackenzie Financial
Corporation in Toronto, Canada as an investment analyst in 1989
and since then, he has served several major financial corporations
including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche Bank and CITIC Capital. In
addition to his vast investment banking and management
experience, Mr. Yu has also managed listed companies such
as New World Cyberbase Limited and Asia Logistics Holdings
Limited in Hong Kong. During his past career, Mr. Yu has focused
on direct investment and mergers and acquisitions activities in
sectors including construction materials, infrastructure, energy,
technologies, media and financial services.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HEHARBERNEZERE

Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Literature from
the Beijing Foreign Studies University, a Master of arts degree in
Education from the University of Toronto and a master’s degree
in business administration from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Yu is a director of King Jade Holdings Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company which has an interest in the shares of
the Company that is required to be disclosed under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, aged 56, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of Australia
CPA. He holds a master of commerce degree, specializing in
banking and finance from the University of New South Wales.
With more than 20 years of experience in PricewaterhouseCoopers
and Ernst and Young, Mr. Wong specializes in the area of auditing
banks and listed companies. He was an independent non-
executive director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 231, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE")) from February 2020 to November
2022 and PT International Development Corporation Limited (Stock
code: 372, a company listed on HKSE).

Mr. Chen Wei Wen, aged 55, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2010. He is also
a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chen holds
a Bachelor of Business (Accounting) from Monash University,
Australia. Mr. Chen worked as a general manager of Guangzhou
Futian Trading Company Ltd (EMTTERE S ERAF]) from
1997 to 2005. Since November 2004, Mr. Chen was appointed as
chief operating officer of Guangzhou Kanxin Polymer Technology
Co., Ltd (EMTELED FEHEER A F]) which is an affiliated
company of Guangzhou Futian Trading Company Ltd (E/NH=E
WNE S HBRRZAF]). Mr. Chen was also appointed as director and
general manager of Fuda Enterprises Limited (& MZEREAR D
7]) since February 1998.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Guan Zhigiang, aged 61, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2016.
He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee, a
member of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Guan holds a bachelor of Agronomy from
Huazhong Agricultural University and a master degree in business
administration from Southwestern University of Finance. During
the period from 1984 to 1996, Mr. Guan had successively worked
in the Ministry of Agriculture of the People’s Republic of China
and the State Planning Commission. He subsequently joined
the Agricultural Development Bank of China and held various
senior management positions and was granted a qualification of
senior economist from the bank. From February 2002 to March
2003, Mr. Guan served as the general manager in New China
Life Insurance Company Ltd, Jinan branch. From March 2003
to November 2005, he worked in Yeland Group Co. Ltd. (now
known as HNA Investment Group Co., Ltd), a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and was appointed as the chairman
of its group’s real estate company. Since 2005, Mr. Guan has
established an investment advisory firm and invested in a number
of enterprises which engaged in various fields including mining,
energy and biotechnology, etc., and acted as a director in those
enterprises. Mr. Guan is currently the vice chairman of Zhejiang
Ecopro Biotech Company, Ltd. *(4T T EFEMEHE AR A 7)) and
a director of Huoerguosi Poly Entertainment Culture Industry Co.,
Ltd* (ERRIABR BRI EZEBMR A R]). He has extensive
experience in finance, investment and corporate management.

*  For identification purpose only

HERRBEHENBZEE

ERBRE 61 RZT—R"ENAER
FAERRBZBUIIENTES - BFHAER
RAHMEZESERE  BREESRIREELEE
KA c BELARBAEPREABRBE 4
B RTEYRABTIEERELTEM - B
—hAWN\EEE—ANNEHRE > EhErk
ERRPEAREMBERELRERTEZ
Bg BEEMATBRREFRRITIETS
ERREE A BBSMEZEITE FaRE
EER NEE_F_AE_FTT=F
=R BREEAHEASREBEROERA
AIEMOARBEE RIEE=F=A=
—EERE+ A BREERREERDER
NE|CREEMREEERMER AR (—R
FEIEHZ ST ETRAE]) TIEIEZE
ERIABETEHEATINEER - A%
TRHERE  BRERI —FTREZADFL
DR ESRLE  (TEREHEVREEXE - &
BREVRESS  THIZLECENES
B  EALBEEANIEEEMREAR
AAMBEERMERRNTFR LR ULE
¥ERNBIMNES - FESE  WE - %
EEEHAABELEMNLR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # #f

15



16

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

HEHARBERNEZERE

Mr. Wang Chaolong, aged 64, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in January 2023. He
is a member of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wang holds
a Bachelor of Science in Physics from Peking University First
Campus*({t R KEE —54). Mr. Wang holds a certificate
of Certified Assets Manager issued by China Enterprise
Confederation in 2010 and qualified as a senior economist in
China Xinxing (Group) Corporation*(FF BIFT & (5£[F) 22 7)) in
2000. He has extensive experience in corporate management.

Mr. Wang served as an assistant/lecturer of Beijing Machinery
Bureau Staff University*(Jb R4 B8k TR Z) from March
1983 to April 1991. He served as an engineer at the Science and
Technology Bureau of China State Shipbuilding Corporation*(#
B AR T2 4 A FRHRE) from May 1991 to February 1994.
He served as a manager of the Operation Department of Beijing
Zhongchuan Gas Engineering Development Company* (1t &/ fit
R T2 A7) 482 36) from March 1994 to December 1994,

From December 1994 to May 1999, he served as division chief
and deputy division chief in investment department of China
Xinxing Industrial Development Company™* (A [ #7 & & % 2%
A 7]) and served as vice general manager in China Xinxing
Industrial Development Company*(H Bl & % 25 & 2 &) from
June 1996 to October 1999. Mr. Wang served as a vice general
manager of China Xinxing Construction Real Estate Development
Corporation*(FE B TIREZEFWERM B E]) from
November 1999 to December 2001. From December 2001 to
June 2013, he served in China Xinxing Industrial Development
Company* (Bl ¥ EL & 22 E 2 7)), currently known as China
Xinxing Asset Management Company Limited* (7 Bl #7814 &
ERAMRETAR), including general manager and executive
deputy general manager. Mr. Wang has been the chairman of
Shanghai Xinxing Medicine Co. Ltd.*(_t- /&7 B8 BEpg (3 A R A 7)
from July 2013 to September 2021.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Wai Koon, Timothy, aged 54, was appointed as Chief
Operating Officer of the Company in January 2015. Mr. Chow
is responsible for directing, administering and co-ordinating the
operational activities of the Group. He is also responsible for
recommending and developing strategies, goals and policies of
the Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chow devoted almost 20 years
to Hewlett-Packard group (“HP"”), a leading global IT provider of
products, technologies, software, solutions and services. While at
HP, Mr. Chow held several senior positions in sales, marketing,
business planning and finance in the Asia Pacific region including
China, Australia and Singapore.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in sales and marketing in
the Asia Pacific region, particularly China, across consumer,
commercial and enterprise customers. In addition, Mr. Chow
has robust knowledge of end-to-end systems from research
and development, manufacturing and distribution to channel,
communication and customer support.

Mr. Chow holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Macquarie Graduate School of Management, Australia,
and a Bachelor’s Degree of Accountancy from the Nanyang
Technological University, Singapore.

Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan, aged 54, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in December 2012 and has been appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company in February 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Cheng held various finance positions at a number of companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and has over
29 years of experience in auditing, finance and accounting.
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Mr. Ku Chun Ming, aged 58, joined the Group in 1993
and currently is the Deputy Managing Director of Bun Kee
(International) Limited, the pipe trading subsidiary of the Group.
Mr. Ku is mainly responsible for the leadership, supervision and
long-term business development of pipes and fittings of the
Company. He has over 37 years of extensive experience in sales
and marketing activities.

Mr. Lai Kui Chung, aged 66, joined the Group in 1979 and is
the Warehouse Director of the pipe trading subsidiary, Bun Kee
(International) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible for the warehouse
and transportation activities of the Group. He has over 44 years
of experience in supervising warehouse and transportation
operations. Mr. Lai holds a Certificate in Store Supervision from a
technical institute.

Mr. Tang Chik Loi, aged 50, joined the Group in 2001 and
currently is the Sales Director of the pipe trading subsidiary,
Bun Kee (International) Limited. Mr. Tang has over 21 years of
experience in piping business. He is responsible for the Group’s
business development and marketing, sourcing new customers,
maintaining and strengthening relationship with customers.
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China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and management
maintain and enhance the policies and practices of the Company
on a timely, transparent, effective and reasonable manner, so as
to maintain good, solid and reasonable corporate governance. The
Company believes that good corporate governance is not only in
the interest of shareholders and investors but also in the interest
of the Company. The Company will continue to raise the standard
to formalize the best practice of corporate governance as far as
we could.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code") as stated in Appendix
C1 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group recognises that a healthy corporate culture is vital for
the Group to achieve its vision and mission towards sustainable
growth. Throughout the years, the Group is committed to
developing a prudent corporate culture in managing financial
resources. This is reflected in our healthy financial position and
long history of operation. The Group believes that the culture
of treating our employees and customers well and with respect
and assuming our responsibilities is a triple-win situation for the
employees, customers and the Group in the long term. To achieve
this, the Group attaches great importance to conducting its
business honestly and with integrity at all times. The Group has
put in place a whistle-blowing policy and anti-corruption policy
in order to develop a culture of openness, accountability and
integrity. The Group will continue to foster its culture that is built
on its vision, mission and values.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rule (the “Model Code"”). Having made specific
enquiry with the directors of the Company (“Directors”), all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors,
including two executive Directors, Mr. Lai Fulin (the Chairman of
the Board) and Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (the Chief Executive Officer);
and four independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr.
Wang Chaolong, one of whom namely, Mr. Wong Yee Shuen,
Wilson has appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise. Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT" of this Annual Report.

Throughout the year, the Board has at least one-third in number
of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract with
the Company and appointed for a term of one year. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws
of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, except that Mr. Lai Fulin is
the younger brother of Mr. Lai Guanglin, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, there is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the
management of the business and affairs; to approve the strategic
plans, investment and funding decision; to review the Group’s
financial performance and operating initiatives. The Board, led by
the Chairman, is responsible for formulating overall strategy and
polices, monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group.
In addition to its overall supervisory role, the Board also retains
specific responsibilities such as approving financial accounts,
approving annual budget, recommending dividend payments,
approving policies relating to the Board’s compliance, etc. whilst
managing the Group’s day-to-day operations is the responsibility
of the management of the Group (the “Management”) such as
implementing internal control, business strategies and plans set by
the Board, etc.. When the Board delegates certain aspects of its
management and administration functions to the Management, it
has given clear directions as to the powers of the Management.
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Independence

The Company has put in place mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and such mechanism
will be reviewed annually by the Board. The Board has balance of
skills, knowledge and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business and to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy. The Board membership is covered by professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel to bring in valuable
contributions and different professional advices and consultancy
for development of the Company. All Directors have separate
and independent access to the advice and services of the senior
management and the company secretary with a view to ensuring
the board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. All Directors have independent access to external
independent professional advice from legal advisers and auditor
at the Company’s expense. All Directors are encouraged to speak
their views in an open and candid manner during the Board or
Board committees’ meetings. Any director (including independent
non-executive director) who has material interest in any contract,
transaction or arrangement shall abstain from voting on any Board
resolution approving the same. No equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive directors.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations.

In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on
the Company'’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code
provision C.1.4 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars and/or reading materials on
the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors EERA
Mr. Lai Fulin FERREE L
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng BRESRE
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson BUEEE
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BRIE e 4
Mr. Guan Zhigiang BEETE
Mr. Wang Chaolong FRAESLAE
Notes: Hiat -

C: EER

F: B ket

L ErTR A E T

R: H AR AR RIS 3T

C: Corporate Governance

F: Finance and Accounting

L: Listing Rules Updates

R: Other Relevant Regulatory Updates

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company are held by separate individuals. The role
of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and accountability.

Mr. Lai Fulin takes up the role of providing leadership for the
Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges
its responsibility properly. With the support of executive Directors
and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
The Chairman also ensures that good corporate governance
practice is in force from time to time, and all key issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
is responsible for managing overall daily operations of the Group,
the implementation of the Group’s development strategies and
plans and to perform other responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
additional meetings are convened when deemed necessary by
the Board. Board members are provided with complete, adequate
and timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. In addition, Directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. In addition, the Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) meet at least once every year without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year, the Board met regularly and held nine meetings.
Notices and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the
board meetings in accordance with the Code. The Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) met once without the presence of executive Directors.
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Meetings held in 2023

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Board
committee meetings and general meetings (including an annual
general meeting and two special general meetings) respectively
held in 2023 are set out as below:

REBZZFETNER

ENESFN_T_=FHRIRES
SRIBRARE (BFE—R
BRERBFAE R RBRRERIAE)WHFERL

EFxg®ETREe

BEHRT

Attended/Eligible to attend
HERY, AEREERE

o= et .

= = ik

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEY RERZES® SMWEE"
A 4-F -] -F - BRAE
Number of Meetings Held SRETRY 6 3 1 2 1
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lai Fulin BB E 6/6 - 11 22 17
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng MRERAE 5/6 - - - 1/1
Independent Non-executive ~ BIFHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson ~ ZBAEEAE 6/6 33 - - 11
Mr. Chen Wei Wen BREXEE 6/6 33 11 22 1/1
Mr. Guan Zhigiang BEREE 6/6 33 11 22 1/1
Mr. Wang Chaolong FHERLE 6/6 373 11 212 1/1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A number of Board committee, including audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established by the Board to strengthen its functions and
to enhance its expertise. All committees have been formed with
specific written terms of reference which deals clearly with the
respective committees’ authorities and duties.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members including one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lai Fulin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang
Chaolong. It is chaired by Mr. Guan Zhigiang.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

(@ To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

(0 To make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments (including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment); and

(d) To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The remuneration package of executive Directors is determined
by reference to their duties and responsibilities, experience and
the prevailing market conditions. The remuneration package of
individual executive Directors includes salary, discretionary bonus
and share-based payment. Details of the Directors’ fee and other
emoluments of the Directors of the Company are set out in Note
32 to the financial statements.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it
will review the proposals made by the management on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management,
and make recommendations to the Board. The Board will have
final authority to approve the recommendations made by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during 2023,
the following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings and recommended to the Board for approval:

e To review the remuneration policy and remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Company;

e To consider the bonus arrangement of the Directors and
senior management of the Company; and

e To review the new service contracts entered into between
the Company and non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the Code, the details
remuneration of the senior management of the Company by band
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was set out in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements of this Annual Report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises four members including an executive Director, Mr. Lai
Fulin, and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chen
Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang Chaolong. It is
chaired by Mr. Lai Fulin, the Chairman of the Board.
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Board Diversity Policy

In August 2013, the Company adopted the Board Diversity Policy.
Such policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on Board.
With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives,
and monitored the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
annually.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and
shall continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to
enhance the gender diversity among the Board members. We will
appoint at least one female representation in our Board before 31
December 2024. As of the date of this report, 100% of Directors
and 67% of our total workforce were male. We will continue with
our endeavor to increase female representation in our Board.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Company adopted the Nomination Policy.
According to the policy, the Nomination Committee (“NC")
will consider candidates recommended by shareholders in the
same manner as candidates recommended to the NC from other
sources. In its evaluation of director candidates, including the
members of the Board eligible for re-election, the NC will consider
(1) The current size and composition of the Board and the needs
of the Board and the respective committees of the Board; (2)
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service; and (3) Other factors that
the NC may consider appropriate.

Corporate Governance Report

(e ogiit ity

EFEHEZTIEHE

R-ZZE—=F)\A  ARFERH(EFS
KEZTIBR) - ZRRIHEFERE
BB Z L MR AR A o RE B A 1548
MIPBER  ARRREFSERASEZT
AR EIEBEERREFAHERR
MBARITE - B AESIZ RIS
BREE  BRETSRNMER - Fik - Xt
REEER EELR - W8 DBNRG
T8 - REBRABNRENAIREESR
HOBRMIERTE - EFXEMAZREINE
AT BIRA - WHEZBANER AT
AOBEMEZERBZ TR - RERE
BeRZTIMNARRSESSNMEK - I
BEERESEKBZITEBORMAIT

RENEZGNEN  EFTERIHEES
SEAMAMNZ T NERE R @ WEE
BB B RMEREAAINBRESSK
BrhlZlt - BN T -_mE+=
A=+ HREEFEZ RS —RBKLUR
R-MARERH MEEER6THHET
REMN - HFSERERINEFTENIZMNK
MHERSE -

BEBR

RZF—N\F+-A ARRCHRMHGRS
BE) - RBZBEK  RBRE S ARY
HipHRAREZ B2 B NREABRN
ARAEEBRREBHNEEA - EFEERR
EANEBRENEEREEINETEXE)R -
REAZBEHER(MNEFEHATREM
HRAREZENEFTERREENHTL
QEFEZTHENZ T BREETRRE
Bl e XMERBBEER  BELR K
Bt~ MBMRFERFIE - ROIREERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # #f

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
BB

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(a

To review the structure, size and composition (board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board;

To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
disclose the Board Diversity Policy or its summary in the
corporate governance report of the Company including
the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and progress made towards achieving these
measurable objectives;

To review the policy for the nomination of Directors
(“Nomination Policy”) as appropriate. The Nomination Policy
shall set out, inter alia, the nomination procedures and
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship;

To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Nomination Committee held a meeting during 2023, the
following major issues were reviewed and discussed in the
meeting:

To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

To review the Board Diversity Policy;

To make recommendation to the Board for approval the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee;

To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of directors; and

To evaluate and make recommendation as to the
qualification and experience of the directors who were
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the 2023
annual general meeting.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this report, Audit Committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee
Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr.
Wang Chaolong. It is chaired by Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
who has the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
and financial management expertise.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

(a

To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or
dismissal;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems; and

To discuss the risk management and internal control
systems with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty'to have effective systems.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during 2023 and the
following major matters were reviewed and discussed in the
meetings:

e To review the annual results of 2022 and the interim results
of 2023 and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

e To make recommendation on the reappointment of the
auditor;

e To review the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programme and related
budget;

e To review the risk management, internal control systems and
annual internal audit plans;

e To review connected transactions entered into by the Group
or subsisting during the year;

e To approve the auditor’'s remuneration for audit of 2023
financial statements; and

e To discuss the audit service plan of 2023.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board adopted the written terms of reference on corporate
governance functions in March 2012 so as to assist the Board
performing corporate governance functions. The terms of
reference of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions are summarized as follows:

(@ To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules and its disclosure requirements in Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuing
professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the Board
in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the auditor generally depends on the
scope and volume of the auditor’s work. For the year ended 31
December 2023, the remuneration to the auditor of the Company
in respect of audit services was HK$1,390,000 and fees related
to taxation services and other non-audit services amount to
HK$115,000 and HK$90,000 respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The senior
management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information and position of the Company.

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company. The responsibilities of the auditor
of the Company with respect to the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
113 to 120.
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GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
risk management and internal controls within the Group and for
reviewing their effectiveness. The systems of risk management
and internal control are designed to facilitate effective and
efficient operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality
of internal and external reporting and compliance control and risk
management functions. It is also designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance that material misstatement or loss
can be avoided, and to manage and minimize risks of failure in
operation systems.

The Group has set up a risk management system to provide
directions in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks and is reviewed at least on an annual basis. The senior
management of the Group identifies risks that would adversely
affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses
and prioritizes the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria.

The Board has engaged an independent professional advisor
to perform ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control review to assess the effectiveness of the financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Company and the Group’s major subsidiaries on
a rotation basis.

Risk management report and internal control report are submitted
to the Audit Committee at least once a year. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system and internal
control system, including the scope on risk management and
internal control systems, result of internal audit work and status of
compliance control.
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With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, The Group has in place
a policy on disclosure of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information. Such policy provides guidelines to the
Directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Group to
ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company from
breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and
assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

e establish periodic financial reporting procedures so that key
financial and operating data is identified and escalated in a
structured and timely manner;

e authorize one or more officer(s) or an internal committee to
be notified of any potential inside information and to escalate
any such information to the attention of the Board;

. restrict access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

e ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Company enters into significant negotiations;

e if confidentiality has been lost, the Company must disclose
the inside information as soon as reasonably practicable.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the Stock
Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website.

Corporate Governance Report

(e ogiit ity

FABZIE K A AR OH B R AR FF A BRER 1 T
5 OAKECERMAABEERERR B
REARERBEHRARBE 2T MABE
7 AEBRRAESE  AEESKSTTHRAR
kBB REBRIESIERFEEERE
I IE AR R B ROEEWBEER - HIFE
A N EPE R M E R R AR R MR A B
EARER -

FELRBRE

o RUTHMBERIET  AEEE RS
K@ R Rl Ko b FRBA SR A B 75 N 2 0E
g

s RBE—EZIEZN—ESRABEH—ER
MEZESEMS T REBRARER
MER  IRENZFEN LREFS
RZ

o RURH  RBIBEREXEBNER
BEARHEE

o« EARTEITEABEN - RRTHE
B HREHE

s EHWHECTBRE AARLEER
i) BEAITHEEANZRNEANRH
%\o

AREBATRFRAMARTEE » KRR QM

MERH B I - BIEEA PRAS A R AN 2 Rk

BEHEERMER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # #f

33



34

Corporate Governance Report
BB

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 22 March 2024,
the independent professional advisor reported their review work
for the year ended 31 December 2023 performed in accordance
with the detailed risk-based internal control review plan which
was approved by the Audit Committee and the risk management
report was also circulated to the Audit Committee for review. The
Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system
and internal control system for the year ended 31 December
2023. The Audit Committee members, together with the senior
management, have also reviewed, considered and discussed
the risk management system, all findings relating to the internal
control system and recommendations for improvement. The Board
considers the risk management system and internal control system
of the Group were effective and adequate during the year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheng Siu Kwan,
who is also the Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Cheng
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He fulfills the requirement under
Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is responsible for providing secretarial
services to the Board and ensuring the operation of the Company
is properly complied with Hong Kong listed companies’ regulatory
requirements as well as enhancing its corporate governance
standards. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
Company Secretary is also the secretary of each of Board
committees. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of all Board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors at all times.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting. The requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company and its head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of Company Secretary and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.
If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this Annual Report
for the attention of Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda Companies
Act, on the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
members of the Company representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the members having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates; or (i) not less than one hundred members,
the Company shall, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the
Company otherwise resolves:

(@) to give to members of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at that meeting;
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(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company's expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the registered office of
the Company and its head office and principal place of business in
Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with
the necessary procedures.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is obliged to provide regular, effective and fair
communication with the shareholders and the investors of the
Company. Latest information is conveyed to the Shareholders and
the investors of the Company on a timely basis. A Shareholder
Communication Policy (the “Policy”) was adopted by the
Company in March 2012. The Policy aims to set out the provisions
with the objective of ensuring that the latest information of
the Company is conveyed to the Shareholders and investors on
a timely basis. The Company uses a range of communication
tools to ensure the Shareholders and the investors are kept well
informed of key business imperatives.

Disclosure of Information

Information shall be communicated to Shareholders and the
investors mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim
report and annual report), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as by making
available all the disclosures submitted to The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) and its
corporate communications and other corporate publications on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.
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General Meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or
to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their
behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings. Shareholders’
views on matters that affect the Company are welcome by the
Board at shareholders’ meetings. Shareholders of the Company
are notified of shareholders” meetings through notices and reports
or circulars sent to them. Each item of special business in the
notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an
explanation for the proposed resolution. A separate resolution
is proposed by the chairman of the meetings in respect of each
separate issue, including the re-election of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or failing him/her, his/her duly appointed delegate, are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions with
regard to the work of these committees.

Voting by Poll

Save as provided under the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote
at the general meetings of the Company (other than procedural
matters) are taken by poll. Procedures regarding the conduct of
the poll are explained to the shareholders at the commencement
of each general meeting, and questions from shareholders
regarding the voting procedures are answered. The poll results are
posted on the respective websites of the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the same day of the poll.

WHISTLE BLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standards of openness, probity and accountability. The Board of
the Company adopted the Whistle Blowing Policy in accordance
with the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 26
May 2022. It provides formal channels and guidance to facilitate
the raising matters of concern by employees of the Group and
those deal with the Group, in confidence, without fear of reprisals.
Details of the Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company are disclosed
on the Company'’s corporate website (www.chinapipegroup.com).
The policy is subject to review by the Audit Committee periodically
to improve its effectiveness and employee confidence in the
process and to encourage a “speak up” culture.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group is committed to upholding integrity, honesty,
fairness, impartiality and ethical business practices as our Group's
core values and has zero tolerance for corruption and related
malpractice. The Board adopted the Anti-Corruption Policy in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 26 May 2022. It provides a reporting mechanism
of suspected corruption practices. Details of the Anti-Corruption
Policy of the Company are disclosed on the Company’s corporate
website (www.chinapipegroup.com). The policy is subject to
review by the Board of the Company periodically to ensure that it
is operating effectively and whether any changes to the policy are
required.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website (www.chinapipegroup.com)
where information and updates on the list of directors and their
roles and functions, constitutional documents, terms of reference
of the Board committees, procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director, announcements, circulars
and reports, etc. released to the HKExnews' website (www.
hkexnews.hk) and other information are posted. Information
on the Company’s website will be updated from time to time.
A dedicated email address (ir@chinapipegroup.com) for investor
enquiry is set out in the “IR Contact” section on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no significant change to the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as “China Pipe” or “Group” or “we"” or
"us") commenced its business in 1949 as a retail shop of pipes.
The Group has now developed into a large-scale enterprise. On
21 December 2000, the Group became a listed company on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
With a deeply rooted foundation in Hong Kong for 74 years, we
have been the mainstay of the industry. The main business of
the Group is import and sale of various pipes, fittings and other
related accessories products covering various kinds of material,
uses and brands, by Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun Kee")
in Hong Kong (“HKSAR”) and Macau. The Group’s products are
sold via wholesale or retail, and provides high-quality storage and
transportation services to major local contractors and owners.

Over the years, the Group has supplied high-quality pipes to
various landmark projects in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland
China. In addition to continuously improving the comprehensive
strength of the Group, we also maintain the original stable
development in the pipe industry, and are committed to
introducing high-quality products, technologies and resources
from all over the world into the China, Hong Kong and Macau
markets to support business development and promote regional
economic growth.
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This is an environmental, social and governance report (referred
to as the “Report”) issued by China Pipe. This Report outlines
our environmental, social and governance (referred to as "ESG")
strategies, work and performance, allowing stakeholders to
have a better understanding of the progress and development
of sustainable development issues of the Group. This Report
is prepared in both Chinese and English. In the event of
contradiction or inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
You may access the Report by clicking Financial Reports under
Investors Relations section on the Company’s website (www.
chinapipegroup.com).

Reporting Period and Scope

The board of directors is responsible for determining the scope of
the Report. The Report covers the period from 1 January 2023 to
31 December 2023 (the “Year” or “Reporting Period” or “2023")
regarding the ESG performance of the core business of the Group,
namely the trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and
fittings, based on the principle of materiality. The scope of this
Report includes:

—  One office, one warehouse and three retail shops in Hong
Kong;

—  One retail shop in Macau; and
—  One office in Shenzhen of Mainland China.

The Reporting Scope of the corresponding period in 2022
(the "Corresponding Period”) report included one office, one
warehouse and two retail shops in Hong Kong, one retail shop in
Macau and one office in Shenzhen of Mainland China, while we
opened a new retail shop in Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong in December
2023.

Reporting Standards

This Report is prepared based on the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"Guide”) under Appendix C2 (formerly known as Appendix 27)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX"), with all the covered
contents having been complied with the mandatory disclosure
requirements and the comply or explain provisions in the Guide
and adhered to the four reporting principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency. Readers could refer to
the last section of the Report: Appendix Il: ESG Reporting Guide
Content Index of HKEX for quick reference.
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Interpretation: The materiality of ESG issues
of the Group is determined by the Board of
Directors. The process and criteria of
stakeholder communication and material issue
identification are disclosed in this Report.
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e Application: The Group understands the
expectations of stakeholders through
guestionnaires, so as to identify and report on
the Group’ s major sustainable development
issues, and make relevant disclosure.
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Materiality
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e Consistency

e Application: The Group —EE

adopts a consistent approach

in reporting and compiling ESG

data for easy comparison. Any changes

will be clearly stated in the Report.
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Interpretation: The statistical methods used
for data disclosure in this Report, unless
otherwise specified, are consistent with those
of previous years.
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About this Report
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Interpretation: Key performance indicators
must be measurable and comparable where
appropriate.
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e Application: The data of the Group’ s key
performance indicators are from the statistics of
the relevant departments. In this Report, we
disclose the statistical standards, methods,
sources of conversion factors, etc., for the

guantitative key performance indicators.
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e Application: The Group adopts
the principles of objectivity and
fairness to detail its achievements in
sustainable development, challenges it
faces and its ESG performance.
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Interpretation: This Report presents the
Group’ s performance during the Reporting
Period in an impartial manner, and avoid
choices, omissions or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence the decisions or
judgments of readers of the Report.
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Report Approval

All information cited in this Report comes from the official
documents, statistical data of China Pipe and its management
and operation information collected according to the Group’s
system. The Group has established internal controls and formal
review procedures to ensure that all information presented in this
Report is accurate and reliable. Members of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Working Team (“ESG Working Team”) are
responsible for formulating and disclosing relevant measures and
key performance indicators (“KPIs”). This Report was approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) on 26
March 2024.

Report Feedback

The Group is committed to establishing a more detailed and sound
sustainable development strategy. We attach great importance to
your views on this Report. If you have any inquiries or comments
on this Report or the Group’s sustainable development policies,
feel free to contact us via email (ir@chinapipegroup.com).
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The past years have witnessed a profound reshaping of the world,
impacting individuals and societies on an unprecedented scale.
In addition to health and safety, other emerging crises, such as
climate change, environmental degradation, resource scarcity, and
economic stability, are still imminent.

Entering 2023, the world is gradually emerging from the
unprecedented challenges posed by the COVID-19 Pandemic. The
Group is positive about the outlook of the construction industry
in Hong Kong. We will grasp the opportunities presented by the
Hong Kong government’s public housing construction program
and a series of hospital development and improvement projects.
We are confident that we will benefit from the growth in Hong
Kong's construction industry in the coming years. It will drive the
demand for our products due to this positive trend.

While meeting our business objectives, we also advocate the
principles of sustainable development. We pay attention to and
support the green concept of sustainable development, and
continuously introduce advanced technologies in the world to
both enhance economic development and protect environment.
Meanwhile, China Pipe has also begun to incorporate
environmental protection and management into the company’s
business decision-making as part of its development strategy
to achieve the consistency of its own development and social
sustainable development goals.

The market has been more concerned about the short-term,
medium-term and long-term impact of corporate values on ESG
and other sustainability factors. There is also increasing emphasis
on the regulation of ESG areas around the globe. Our established
ESG Working Team, as always, actively integrates sustainable
development work into daily operations, and continuously
monitors the Group’s ESG policies, initiatives and performance,
which effectively improve the Group’s performance. We continue
to contribute to the environment and society and create values for
stakeholders.

Besides, to meet the growing expectations and demands of
our stakeholders and society for sustainable development as
much as possible, we are determined to enhance the Group’s
environmental and social performance. Through the ESG report,
we continue to enhance our stakeholders’ awareness of ESG issues
and the Group’s governance capabilities to maintain the overall
performance of the company.
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Message from the Management

I Ay

We promise to incorporate green operations into corporate
development while developing our business. Through continuous
partnership with key suppliers in research and development,
we will invest in building a wider range of energy-saving and
emission-reducing products and production processes to meet
the evolving demands of our global customers. As sustainable
development lies at the heart of our core principles, we will keep
upholding our pledge to apply eco-friendly technologies in our
production processes and establish green supply chains. In the
future, China Pipe will strive to improve energy efficiency, reduce
waste and carbon emissions, and strengthen the management
and disclosure of environmental and climate information, so as
to be in line with the trend of global environmental protection
policies.

As a company that cares about the society, we advocate the
belief of contributing to the society, seeking innovative ways to
give back to society, and continuing to undertake our corporate
social responsibility. We encourage employees to organize and
participate in voluntary activities and support them to do so
continually. We also provide monetary or material donations to
charities or designated organizations. The Company was awarded
the Caring Company logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for more than ten consecutive years, which is a recognition
for the Group and its employees.

Adhering to the vision of Global Assets, International Platform,
Serving China, we continue to explore new areas of business
development and gradually move towards internationalization and
specialization. The Group continues to adhere to its mission of
providing customers with quality products, providing value-added
services and maintaining product quality and safety. | would like
to extend my utmost sincere thanks and respect on behalf of the
Group to every stakeholder supporting China Pipe.

Chief Operating Officer
Chow Wai Koon Timothy
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Sustainable Development Strategy

Statement of the Board

In order to further promote ESG matters of the Group and
promote sustainable development, we have established an ESG
Working Team directly led by the Board to monitor ESG matters
of the Group more effectively. The Board bears full responsibility
regarding the Group's ESG strategy, approach and reporting.

Under the leadership of the Board, the ESG Working Team
conducted a materiality assessment this Year to understand
the concerns and requirements of various stakeholders so as to
determine the Group’s ESG management approaches, strategies,
priorities and goals. The Board understands that the establishment
of ESG targets aids in the Group’s ESG governance. Therefore,
the Board sets ESG targets related to the Group’s business where
appropriate, and reviews progress made toward improving the
Group's ESG performance by keeping track of the ESG KPI on
a regular basis, in the environmental and social aspects, which
are vital and closely related to the business of the Group. The
goals show the effectiveness of China Pipe’s ESG policy and
management system, and the relevant policies will be improved
according to the progress of the goals. In future, we will review
the relevant goals’ progress to improve sustainability work.

ESG Governance Structure

China Pipe has integrated the concept of sustainable development
into the Group's operations and has formulated several policies to
promote sustainable development. Our ESG governance structure
is as follows:

The Board
B5g
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Chairman of the ESG Working Team
ESG T{F/MEER

Members of the ESG Working Team
ESG Tt/ NERKE

We are committed to improving sustainability performance, and
the ESG Working Team is mainly responsible for monitoring the
policy implementation and work of sustainable development. The
ESG Working Team, directly overseen by the Board, is chaired
by the Chief Operating Officer, with various department heads/
managers as the members.
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The main responsibilities of the Board include:

e Resolving, reviewing and approving the Group’s ESG
management approaches, strategies, goals and annual work;

e Assessing, prioritizing and managing material ESG issues,
risks and opportunities; and

e  Reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.
The main responsibilities of the ESG Working Team include:

— Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s ESG policies,
initiatives and performances, including employment
and labour practices, community engagement, product
responsibility and environmental protection, etc.;

— Communicating with stakeholders through appropriate
channels; and

—  Reporting regularly and make recommendations to the
Board.

Communication with Stakeholders

China Pipe firmly believes that the long-term interests and
sustainable development of the Group are based on the support
and trust of the stakeholders. We will actively maintain close and
harmonious relations with various stakeholders and listen to their
views and expectations and properly respond to their needs to
achieve long-term success.

We contact the following stakeholders through various channels
such as phone, emails, questionnaires, daily meetings, factory
tours, networking events by relevant associations to collect
their views on relevant ESG issues. The followings are our
communication approaches with key stakeholders:
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Key stakeholders Communication approaches
TEHGE BERN

Clients e Daily operation/communication
B e Phones/emails

e HEEE /M

o EFEEH

Shareholders/Investors e Annual general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings
B EE e Interim report and annual report

e Result announcement

e RREFASEHMBKRRAS

o ERERFR

Employees e Channels for employees to express their opinions (e.g.: form,
BT suggestion box)

e Performance appraisal

e \/olunteer work, recreational activities
e Seminars/Workshops/Intranet

e BIXREFERMEREGERR BREH)
o EMGTEEH

e BIEH - REED

o HiEt® I{ES NEHE

Community/ e Volunteer activities’community activities
Non-Governmental Organization e Seminars/lectures/workshops
it I 5 e BILEFY HREH

o HEE EE/I{EH
Associations e Meetings/phones/emails/recreational activities
EESER o B /EE/EE MED
Suppliers/Business Partner e Work inspection and supervision
HrER, BBt e Meetings/phones/emails

.« THEREREE
.« BMEEEH
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Materiality Assessment

To allocate resources more effectively and promote the
development of ESG work, during the Year, the Group considered
its operating performance and topics of concern of various
stakeholders and the best practice in the industry, with reference
to the disclosure obligations under the Guide and the Materiality
Map issued by the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
("SASB"). In addition, we sorted out the identified material
ESG issues, and invited internal and external stakeholders to
participate in the online questionnaire survey, so that we can
better understand the expectations of various stakeholders. With
all these information, we could identify ESG material issue to the
Group.

The online questionnaire covers a number of key ESG issues.
The Group ranks material ESG issues based on the questionnaire
feedback from various stakeholders to ensure the assessment
results are accurate and objective.

We examine the importance of each issue based on the two
dimensions of Materiality to the Group’s business and Materiality
to Stakeholders and create a materiality assessment matrix to
summarize the materiality assessment results.

After analysis, the Group has prioritized the material ESG issues,
including 4 highly material issues, 6 material issues and 2 ordinary

issues.

The following ESG materiality issues results have been reviewed
and approved by the Board.
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2023 China Pipe’s Materiality Matrix
2023 FEHEIEXENERMER

Health and safety
BEEZE

Employment

=R

r guidelines
8|

Use of Resources
ARER

Environment and natural

Development and training
BRALE

HEREH

Anti-corruption

Product liability
£

> o =
EmE1
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Emissions

HERR

Use of Resources
HIRER

Environment and natural resources
RERRAER

Climate change

RIREE

Employment

=%

Health and safety
REEZE
Development and training
BRI

Labour standards
ST

Supply chain management
HrEEER

Product liability

ERAL

Anti-corruption

REBE

Community investment

HERE

RERB

Low

Highly Material Issues

Materiality to the Group
HAKENEEN

Material Issues

High

Ordinary Issues

BEEESRE TEEERE —REEZRE
Anti-corruption Labour guidelines Emissions
RER 25 TR BEL
Health and safety Development and training Community investment
REEZE FRANFII HERE
Employment Supply chain management
(= HregEE
Product liability Use of Resources
EmEE BIRER

Climate change

TUREHL

Environment and natural resources

RIERRAER

In response to the concerns of stakeholders, this Report elaborates
the Group’s policies, measures and performance related to
important ESG issues during the Reporting Period. In addition,
we will also review relevant ESG policies and make appropriate
adjustments in the future to meet the expectations of our

stakeholders. \%
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Risk Management

In order to effectively formulate a risk management system
to identify, assess, process, control or reduce various major
operational, governance and ESG risks, the Group has specially
formulated the Risk Management Report. The Board is responsible
for the supervision and management of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, as well as reviewing
their effectiveness, including establishing a clear enterprise risk
management framework and risk management policies. The Board
needs to fully understand all the material risks that will affect
the Company and how the management manages these risks
to ensure the Company'’s business objectives can be reasonably
achieved. The management also regularly reports the risks
faced by the Group and its changes to the Board and the Audit
Committee, and establishes internal control measures to mitigate
risks.

We have developed a risk management system that provides
guidelines and standards for risk identification, assessment,
treatment and risk reporting. Business unit heads identify and
manage opportunities arising from unavoidable risks in order to
achieve the company’s business objectives. We identified and
assessed adverse risks which affected the Group’s achievement
of its objectives. The assessment and treatment methods are
recorded in the Risk Register for the management to review and
continuously monitor.

The Audit Committee under the Board assists the Board in
continuously monitoring the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reviews the effectiveness of relevant
systems at least once a year. Before conducting the on-site work
of internal audit, the Group will prepare an internal audit plan
based on the results of the risk assessment. The results of the
internal audit will be used for communication among different
business unit heads, who are responsible for following up on
internal control recommendations and improvements. Thereafter,
each business unit head is required to update the risk-responding
plans for various risk levels in the Risk Register for further
assessment and monitoring.

The Group is committed to incorporating sustainability governance
factors into its risk management systems and procedures to
identify the Group'’s related risks and formulate countermeasures.
We will continue to improve our ESG performance to enhance
business sustainability in an ever-changing business environment.
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Compliant Business Environment

As a leading provider of pipes and fittings, China Pipe has set
high requirements on the supply chain and product quality, and
is committed to providing customers with high-quality products
and services while improving the supply chain. The Group has
formulated internal rules and regulations such as the Supplier
Management System, the Procurement Management System,
the Product Responsibility Policy and the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy to ensure product quality, reduce supply chain
risks, improve product reliability and satisfy clients’ needs.

Product Quality Control

Product quality assurance is regarded as top priority of China
Pipe. The Group will base on the Product Responsibility Policy
to conduct tests on relevant institutes regarding reliability,
compatibility and safety specification, and obtain product
qualification certification. When we supply products to customers,
it is required to meet the specifications and quality specified by
customers, and comply with the relevant requirements of local
government departments for the products. During the Year, all
products of the Group (specified types of pipes or fittings under
regulation) are granted qualifications of General Acceptance
(commonly known as acceptance letter) by the Hong Kong Water
Supplies Department (“WSD").

Waterworks Regulations-the General Acceptance
qualification of plumbing products

The Water Supplies Department implements the General
Acceptance system for pre-approval of plumbing products
when approving plumbing-related engineering works. Plumbing
products which gained General Acceptance must need to have a
sample test report issued by an organization under the Hong Kong
Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS), or a BSI Kitemark
issued by the British Standards Institution or the certification issued
by the British Water Regulations Advisory Scheme (WRAS), so as
to confirm the products fulfil the statutory standard.

The Water Supplies Department will also select the plumbing
products with the General Acceptance qualification on the market
for testing. The test subjects include chemical composition (metal
elements of metal parts in contact with drinking water) and the
main functions of the plumbing fixtures to check if the products
are still able to meet all required criteria for the accreditation. The
Group provides plumbing products for spot checks by the Water
Supplies Department. During the Reporting Period, all products
subject to spot check passed the General Acceptance plumbing
product monitoring program and met the quality requirements of
their respective standards.
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The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group, such as the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Waterworks Regulations (Chapter 102 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
We have a Quality Control Department, which inspects suppliers’
factory production equipment and goods, spot checks on
warehouse’s goods and engages third-party assessment according
to the international standards and customer requirements
to ensure product quality meets relevant legal requirements.
Products must pass the established review and inspection
procedures before they can be officially shipped and delivered.
If the Quality Control Department finds substandard products or
receives external complaints during the daily sampling inspection
of goods, we will conduct a meeting according to the Triggering
Mechanism of Recall Procedures to study the quality issues, assess
risks and severity, and to determine if it is needed to do product
recall. Once a recall is decided, we will notify affected customers
of the recall arrangements as soon as possible. Regardless of
product recall is launched or not, the Group requires suppliers to
find out the causes of quality issues, strengthen internal quality
control, and take improvement measures. In addition, we have
internal quality inspection regulations, like Inspection Procedures,
Galvanized Pipe Inspection Procedures, etc., to enhance product
quality.

We attach great importance to the experience of customers
about the products. Therefore, the Group will regularly hold
cross-departmental quality control meetings specifically for
reporting quality problems. The members participating in the
meetings include the Chairman of the Group, the Chief Operating
Officer, and the product managers of the Sales Department,
Purchasing Department and Quality Control Department. During
the Reporting Period, the Group received a total of 8 (2022: 11)
complaints about product quality, and we made corresponding
remedial plans in a timely manner. All cases were properly
handled, and there were no cases in which products had to be
recalled due to safety and health concerns.
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Compliant Business Environment

Information Security Management

In order to protect the privacy of customers, the Employee
Handbook stated that employees shall not directly or indirectly
use and disclose confidential information to third parties,
including business secrets, transactions and technical information
about customers or suppliers. Our information is managed and
maintained in an enterprise resource planning (“ERP"”) system.
System licenses of all operators are strictly set based on their
responsibilities, and the management regularly checks their
permissions. We have established a data backup procedure and
a regular test and inspection program for backup data. If any
confidential information is found to be leaked, remedial measures
must be taken immediately and notify the management of the
Group for relevant decisions. The Group ensures that the personal
data retained is properly protected against unauthorised or
accidental access, processing, deletion or use. The Personal Data
Privacy Policy is included in the Employee Handbook as a guideline
for all new and current staff handling personal data. We regularly
review the policies on personal data privacy to ensure the policies
comply with the relevant legal requirements, so as to protect
the privacy of customers and the Group to the greatest extent
and to ensure that the policies comply with the relevant legal
requirements.

In addition, we are committed to ensuring the delivery of
complete and accurate information to the public and safeguarding
the intellectual property rights of the Group and business
partners, including patent rights, trademark rights and copyrights.
We strictly abide by relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Patents Ordinance (Chapter 514 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and the Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter
559 of the Laws of Hong Kong). We closely monitor intellectual
property trends relevant to the Group. If there is any malicious
infringement after verification, we will require the infringer to
bear compensation and legal responsibility according to the law
in order to prevent others from infringing intellectual property
rights. During the Reporting Period, no violations issues were
found regarding advertising, labelling and privacy-related laws and
regulations.

Building a Culture of Integrity

China Pipe attaches great importance to integrity and pays
attention to business ethic, creating an honest and trustworthy
corporate atmosphere. We strictly abide by the Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter
615 of Laws of Hong Kong), Organized and Serious Crimes
Ordinance (Chapter 455 of Laws of Hong Kong), Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations.
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The Group has formulated the Gift and Entertainment Policy,
which prohibits employees from accepting illegitimate benefits
such as cash or kickback, and should not have an implied intention
to seek or obtain preferential treatment, and ensure that the
entertainment with customers and manufacturers is of reasonable
value and frequency.

The Group has also established the Whistleblowing Policy and
the Anti-corruption Policy to provide a communication channel
for reporting corruption or fraud, and encourages employees and
those who have business with the Group to report any corruption
and fraud within the Group through e-mail and other channels,
creating monitoring effects with personnel and corporate
culture that put integrity first. The above-mentioned policies and
communication channels are publicly available on the Company’s
website for internal and external parties. The Group will also
regularly communicate the above policies and channel to all
employees through different channels, including but not limited to
orientation training and on-the-job training. All reports would be
directly followed up by the Audit Committee. We are committed
to the strict confidentiality of all identities and information and
emphasize a zero-tolerance policy for engaging in any type of
corrupt or bribery activity. During the Reporting Period, we did
not receive any new lawsuits against the Group or our employees,
or uncover any cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

During the Reporting Period, the Board and employees of different
levels of the Group participated in the integrity education and anti-
corruption training. They have strengthened their anti-corruption
and integrity awareness by attending seminars concerning anti-
corruption, watching the education videos and reading materials
by Independent Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region.

The Group fully promotes a corporate culture of integrity,
sets a good example, avoids conflicts of interest, shoulders
responsibilities, improves the Company’s management system,
conducts effective supervision and improves early warning
efficiency, in order to reduce operating costs and risks of
corruption and bribery, and further establish a good reputation for
the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Compliant Business Environment

Supply Chain Management

China Pipe is an enterprise providing high-quality pipes. Material
and service suppliers connect with all aspects of operation
of our business, and it plays an important role in our quality
management. The Group attaches great importance to the
management and sustainability of the supply chain. We have strict
requirements on procurement procedures and supplier selection
and management, and establish a sound supplier management
system. We have formulated a series of relevant system documents
and standard operating procedures, such as the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, the Procurement Management System, the
Supplier Management System and other internal regulations, in
order to understand the process capability and quality control
function of suppliers, identify environmental and social risks
along the supply chain and standardize supplier management
and improve operation level. All suppliers must comply with the
internal rules and codes of the Group.

In this Year, the Group had 31 (2022: 33) suppliers in total, and
all suppliers are subject to the following practices regarding
suppliers’ engagement. The suppliers’ numbers and geographical
distributions are as follows:
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2023 2022
2023F [ 2022 /E
Mainland China A A 12 13
Hong Kong SAR R EAS 8 8
United Kingdom HE 4 4
South Korea FEEY 2 2
;‘r}t‘tg%egion Thailand ZR 2 2
Australia SEM 1 1
Japan A 1 1
United States of America ~ E& 1 1
Vietnam =] 0 1
Total number of suppliers
HERAY 31 33
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In order to ensure that the supplier complies with environmental
and social requirements and the level of corporate ethics, the
Group commits in the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to
take environmental and social performance into consideration
in the procurement process, in order to reduce the negative
impact on the environment and society, and promote sustainable
development. In addition, the Group established the Code of
Conduct and Ethics and requires every supplier to sign and confirm
their products and services comply with relevant environmental
laws and regulations and ethical practices, such as emphasizing
environmental protection, prohibiting child labour or forced
labour, fair treatment of labour, and anti-discrimination. Supplier
operations are required to respect and promote international
principles of social, environmental and corporate ethics.

The Group has established a Supplier Basic Information Form.
When considering the adoption of a new supplier, we will record
the relevant information of the supplier for the management’s
approval before updating the approved supplier list and
cooperating with the supplier to supply.

We assess the performances of suppliers in terms of its quality,
finance, price, environmental protection and labour rights. The
one with the most outstanding performance which also complying
with the relevant regulations will be engaged. According to
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and Code of Conduct and
Ethics, the Group gives priority to products and services that
obtain the Green Label whenever reasonable and possible. It
is aimed to utilise resources effectively, with the reduction of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Our Company will regularly
review the policy to meet the needs of technological development
and incorporate more products that have a positive impact on the
environment into the policy scope.

In addition to this, we have developed a Supplier Rating Scale.
The Procurement Department analyses supplier performance
by different items, including items in terms of quality, delivery,
customer service and environmental issue. Suppliers must
achieve a standard score for a long-term relationship. If suppliers
underperform, we regularly meet with them and monitor and
communicate with them to improve their shortcomings, or even
disqualify them and replace with other alternative sources.
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Compliant Business Environment

The quality of procured goods from suppliers directly affects the
quality of the Group’s products. In order to reduce operational
risks arising from product quality and health and safety in the
supply chain, the Group has set up a Quality Control Department
responsible for inspecting suppliers’ plant production equipment
and goods, sampling inspection of warehouses’ goods and
sending sampled products to third parties for testing to ensure
that the products comply with local and international standards.
The department will visit suppliers’ factories for inspections,
evaluate the applicability and effectiveness of their quality control
procedures, and review the quality of products ordered by the
Group. We will also independently engage a reputable third-
party laboratory to conduct quality tests on the sample products
provided by suppliers. Products must pass the established review
and inspection procedures before they can be officially shipped
and delivered.

Customer Service Quality

China Pipe respects the opinions of all customers, which we
regard as an important basis for the improvement of the Group.
The Group established the Customer Complaint Handling
and Response Procedure to provide a clear and standardized
operating guidance for relevant departments. If customers have
any comments or complaints about the products and services of
the Group, they can contact our relevant sales staff. The relevant
personnel will immediately report to the supervisor and make
written records and follow up immediately. Our sales team will
go to the customer company or site to understand the situation,
inspect the product, take photos and take samples back to the
company. In response to product issues, the Group will report and
review the reasons to suppliers. If feasible, we will replace another
batch of products to the customer. If it cannot be replaced and
additional work on the product is required, we will share the
cost with the customer for the defective products. Regarding
any complaints, we will investigate and deal with them timely
according to the internal procedures to ensure the quality of China
Pipe’s products and services, so as to establish a good reputation
for customers.
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China Pipe regards its employees as an important cornerstone to
drive the company’s development and success. We recruit and
hire the best talent to build high-performing teams. We attach
great importance to the development of employees’ professional
talents, provide them with a positive career path according to their
characteristics and their own development situations, and then
become a multi-disciplinary team leading the industry to support
the company’s overall development strategy and business goals.
We also hope to improve the physical and mental well-being of
our employees, and take it as our responsibility to create a safe,
healthy and fair working environment for all our employees to
ensure a positive impact on the society as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 167 (2022:
155) employees including full-time and part-time, of which
94% (2022: 93%) of employees work in Hong Kong, while the
remaining in the operation sites located in Macau and Shenzhen.
Please refer to Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary
for detailed distribution.

Employment Structure Management

The Group complies with all the laws and regulations on the
employment under the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57
of Laws of Hong Kong) of the HKSAR and industry codes. We
have compiled the Employee Handbook to actively regulate the
employment and labour system. In this system, we have a clear
management process to help employees understand the areas
of job setting, recruitment, promotion, dismissal, remuneration,
equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and welfare distribution,
protect the rights and interests of both employers and employees,
and establish equal labour relations.

China Pipe is an employer emphasizing equal opportunity. The
recruitment decisions for all positions are only considered based
on the professional qualifications of individual positions and
the inherent requirements of employment. Candidates must
be selected through interview process, in which any form of
discrimination, including discrimination and unfair treatment based
on age, gender, race, religion, marital status, sexual orientation or
disability, will not be tolerated. In addition, in accordance with our
internal policy Prohibition of Child Labour Policy, we take effective
procedures to verify the age of any candidate prior to hiring,
including but not limited to checking official documents to prevent
child labour. The Group conducts child labour prevention training
for the Human Resources Department to enhance the relevant
personnel’s understanding of the regulations, and enhance their
awareness during the recruitment process.
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To alleviate the manpower shortage at different skill levels, China
Pipe proactively responds to the labor scheme set by Hong Kong
government, including but not limited to Admission Scheme for
Mainland Talents and Professionals and Enhanced Supplementary
Labour Scheme, to enhance our talent competitiveness and
promote workforce diversity.

The Group is committed to creating and maintaining an
environment free of any form of harassment or discrimination
for its employees. We expressly prohibit cruelty or threats against
any employee (including any form of sexual harassment, corporal
punishment, mental oppression or verbal abuse). The Group has
zero tolerance for sexual harassment and gender discrimination.
To prevent sexual harassment in the workplace, the Group has
established and formulated an employee grievance mechanism.
Employee who has been sexually harassed can file formal
complaints with their department heads, managers, or the Human
Resources Department. All complaints will be treated confidentially
and independently. We are committed to combating harassment
and will discipline harassers when necessary.

To prevent forced labour, we protect the right of our employees
to freely choose employment and ensure that all employment
relationships are voluntary. The Group and its employees may
terminate the employment contract for personal reasons or
other reasons, and need to give an appropriate notice period or
payment in lieu of notice. In addition, the Group also regulates
staff working hours and rest arrangements. If an employee agrees
to work outside office hours due to an emergency, it will be
treated as overtime. Department heads and managers need to
approve overtime work arrangements and provide employees with
compensatory leave. We ensure that internationally recognized
human rights are respected, promoted and enhanced in our
labour practices, including prohibition of any form of forced
labour.

If the Group and its employees found relevant violations such
as identity, age, or forced labour, both parties can immediately
terminate their labour contracts to protect their legitimate labour
rights and interests. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not violate any relevant laws and regulations on remuneration
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, prevention of child
labour or forced labour, nor did any cases of child labour or forced
labour were found.
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Employee Rights and Benefits

The Group is committed to offering competitive remuneration and
welfare to attract and retain talented people. In order to ensure
that the remuneration and welfare policies remain competitive in
the market, we will adjust the annual remuneration of employees
every year. The consideration and range of salary adjustment are
mainly determined based on factors such as company benefits
and employee performance, adjusted ranks, and market salary
trends. We will conduct employee performance appraisal for
employees once a year and establish a performance feedback
channel to strengthen the interaction and communication
between supervisors and employees, so that employees can
understand their work performance and improvement, so as
to assist their personal work and further career development.
Besides, in accordance with the local labor laws and social
security laws and regulations, the Group provides social security
benefits for all employees by contributing to various social security
scheme. These laws and regulations include but not limited to the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of Laws of Hong Kong)
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of Laws of Hong Kong). The Group also has a long-term
service award, which is awarded to employees who have served
continuously for every 10 years in recognition of their long-term
loyal service and contributions.

In addition, the Employee Handbook also details of the benefits
and leave provisions for employees. In addition to statutory
holidays and annual leave, employees are entitled to sick leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave, marriage leave, and bereavement
leave. The Group also allows employees to leave work earlier on
certain holidays according to work arrangements. We care about
the health of our employees and provide full-time employees with
various medical benefits, including outpatient care services, 24-
hour global emergency support services, hospital and surgical
coverage, etc.

Secondly, the Group holds employee gatherings and activities
every year, including annual dinner, Mid-Autumn Festival, birthday
party, Christmas and occasional luncheons, etc., to shorten the
distance between employees, build team cohesion, and enhance
the sense of belonging to the company.
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China Pipe believes that effective communication can build FREEEREAINEBEMNELETHE
understanding, trust between employees and management and BEZTHE EEREHEEMERE Y T
promote a positive and happy working environment, thereby RN EMREERNSENRE N - RMEE
enhancing the competitiveness of the Group. We encourage open AR ERER o 8 T A AR
and honest two-way communication. Employees can express iR S F 5 s E A 5 SR AP E S A
their opinions to the department manager or Human Resources NERBERMINER - ETRAIEST
Department at any time via email or in person. Employees can also REGHARBNGEINE REIHES ©

learn about the company’s latest announcements and activities on

the notice board.

2023 Spring Dinner
20235 HRE

The Spring Dinner brings positive implications for both our management and employees, contributing to their
overall well-being and fostering a sense of belonging. This event serves as a powerful tool for enhancing
employees’ engagement, strengthening team cohesion, and establishing a positive working atmosphere. By
bringing management and employees together in a celebratory environment, it cultivates a sense of camaraderie,
mutual support, and shared achievements, ultimately promoting a more cohesive and productive workforce.
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Occupational Safety and Health

China Pipe attaches great importance to occupational safety and
health and strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations. We
formulated a series of measures and policies to ensure the health
and safety of employees in different roles. As of the end of the
Year, the injured employees have received appropriate treatments
and were granted injury leaves, timely injury leave payment
and compensation according to the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of Laws of Hong Kong).

In order to enhance the safety awareness of employees, we
provided new employees with a safety guideline, and arrange
warehouse employees to participate in health and safety courses,
including internal occupational safety and health regulations,
safety regulations for work under adverse weather, manual
handling operational safety regulations, etc., to enhance the
safety awareness of employees.

To reduce the risk of work-related injuries in warehouses, the
Group formulated the Warehouse Safety Regulations and the
Safety Code for Work-at-height. We provided warehouse staff
with guidelines for mobile machinery operations (lifting machinery,
forklifts), manual handling operations, outdoor working, good
site tidiness, and the guidelines of the proper use of ladders and
workbenches. We have appointed one staff in the capacity of
safety supervisor. The main job duties of the safety supervisor
include: providing safety awareness training, formulating safety
codes, organising safety meetings regularly, arranging employees
to attend occupational health and safety training, reporting on
cases of work-related injuries. During the Reporting Period, we
have organized occupational safety and health training activities,
covering accident review and safety training of the year. We
are committed to improving employees’ environmental safety
awareness and alertness and reducing work-related injury cases.

The Group engaged a registered safety officer (the “Safety
Officer”), providing health and safety training courses for
warehouse staff annually. The Safety Officer oversees the
inspection of warehouse of the Company, writes safety check
reports, and provides professional advice to the management
regarding working environment safety and equipment. The
management will monitor the warehouse safety, regularly inviting
warehouse supervisors to attend management meetings to report
on the working environment and make appropriate reviews to
continuously improve the working environment and safety related
policies.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group experienced 35 (2022:
693) lost working days due to work-related injuries, which was
caused by a few minor accidents. There were no work-related
fatalities in the past three years. For work-related injury cases, we
take various preventive measures, such as posting notices in the
workplace to indicate the precautions and handling methods for
employees, and department heads will also remind colleagues
from time to time to pay attention at work, etc.

Nurturing Key Talents

China Pipe has always been committed to providing continuous
learning and development opportunities for its employees
to ensure they have the required professional skills and can
maximize their potential at work. The Group has formulated the
Talent Training and Promotion Programme, aiming to sharpen
employees’ communication skills, problem-solving skills and team
spirit, as well as to boost their core competitiveness, supporting
their career and personal development. We believe that nurturing
talents can help the Group remain competitive in the market
and promote long-term business growth. The Group provides
specialized training for outstanding and employees with strong
potential, as well as assessment and promotion opportunities,
those who are qualified in the assessment will be promoted to the
Group’s management or key positions.

The Group analyses the training needs of employees according
to the annual performance evaluation of employees, formulates
the company’s training and development plans and provides
appropriate subsidies. Besides, the Group also arranged
employees to receive training from external institutions, including
Construction Industry Safety Card course and other safety-related
training. The Group also provides employees of the Accounting
Department, Company Secretary Department and Human
Resources and Administration Department with course fees and
professional society membership fees related to their positions,
so as to continuously update the professional knowledge
and compliance rules of employees in various departments.
We conduct annual assessments to monitor and evaluate the
company’s training and development plans. The management will
review departmental training needs with each department head to
ensure the sustainability of talent and business development.

BT~ dhE R
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High-quality Professional T'eam

R R MR

The following are the percentages of our trained personnel by LA REHAMPIRATRE B 22022 6 R BRE 14 R
gender and employee category during the Reporting Period and REBERESNZINEIBSL - UEE
the corresponding period in 2022, and the average training hours BHFHNE TR FHEEF IS

per employees:

Percentage of Average training hours per
employees trained' each employee trained
FISTEDL' BEZIVIE TN FIIEINEFEH
2023 2022 2023 2022
By gender RERIE S
Male S 69.8% 69.4% 1.6 3.3
Female pogid 30.2% 30.6% 2.6 2.6

By employee category RESERE S

Management BEEAE 3.0% 1.9% 3.3 0.7

Department head/manager ZRFIE%E,4EHE 7.3% 11.2% 3.8 6.6

General staff —MET 89.7% 86.9% 1.6 2.4

Total/overall mst me 100.0% 100.0% 1.9 3.1

. The calculation is referenced from the methods, assumptions and 1 FESZIEIED LRI EL NG| AR

guidelines set out in the following Guidance and Standards: HKEX's FRER L - REMIES  BERXGF
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs in “How to prepare (T EEIRE g RERBRE) M=
an ESG Report” to calculate percentage of employees trained. (L S RARESIBIZERIES]) - SRS
Percentage of employees trained in the relevant categories = T(x)/T JEBIEDE =TX) /T x 100, T(x) = %85l
x 100, T(x) = Number of employees who took part in training in the ETZIAE  T=ZNETHEAK -, {
specified category, T = Number of total employees who took part in
training.
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As a socially responsible enterprise, China Pipe attaches great
importance to environmental protection, is committed to reducing
the possible impact of its business on the environment, and
ensures sustainable business operations by integrating economic
development, social progress and environmental protection. The
Group has formulated the Environmental Protection Policy to set
out the strategies and objectives of environmental management.
We integrate environmental stewardship into our corporate
decision-making process, including making better use of natural
resources and energy, reducing and recycling waste, and reducing
pollution to the land and the atmosphere. We actively consider
the introduction of new technologies, taking into account both
economic development and environmental protection. During
the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any violation
of relevant environmental protection laws or major incidents that
affected the environment and natural resources, nor received any
notice of penalties or lawsuits regarding environmental.

The Group believes the support of employees, customers and
suppliers is particularly important for the effectiveness of the
implementation of environmental protection measures. Therefore,
we are committed to two-way communication, including ensuring
employees are clearly informed of such policy and the Group'’s
goals for protecting the environment, encouraging suppliers to
operate in a sustainable manner, and providing transparent and
direct environmental performance information to the community,
and actively participation in activities organized by environmental
protection groups to improve environmental performance in an
all-round way.

The Group understands and actively fulfils its corporate social
responsibility of protecting the environment. As such, since
2021, we have formulated preliminary directional goals in terms
of energy efficiency, water efficiency, waste reduction and
greenhouse gas emissions. We will review and assess various
environmental protection goals, targets and the implementation
or achievement status of the measures, and explore more
opportunities for energy conservation and emission reduction.

REE ~ e BRI
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e Q1 o 4 25 08

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction B RE M BEE
Management

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions management BEREBHNEE

During the Year, we mainly referred to the following standards REE - BMETELETEAMIES| RE
and guidance to quantify greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from bEBEEEERNREREIN - E#E—
business operations and further review the effectiveness of PRETRERR R SIETRE R
measures and formulate improvement measures:

1) HKEX's Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental 1) BEXRGA(AREEBRE  HBRE
KPIs in “How to prepare an ESG Report”; and JRERE) 8 = GRIFRENUE T IE®
31 ¢ R

2)  “Emission Factors for Greenhouse Gas Inventories” published 2) EEERRBRER(EBERERB D
by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). mHCAEREEHA M -

During the Reporting Period and the corresponding period in RSN KR2022FRE - MR HREHE
2022, our GHG emissions within the scope of this report are as NENRZEREBHERT
follows:

GHG emissions

BEREIEN

Emissions (tonnes of CO,-e)

FHE (MM _S{RER)

2023 2022

2023FE 20226

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions? HENEEREREBEENC 401.10 389.54

Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions? HE2BERERBHRC 118.95 117.93

Scope 3: Other indirect GHG emissions* #HE 3 H MR =R B 17.68 8.68

GHG emissions in total® BEREEREES 537.73 516.15
GHG intensity® R Ee

(in terms of floor area per m2) (AGFE 7 REERTE) 0.02 0.02
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d Scope 1 includes emissions of fossil fuel combustion from
stationary and mobile sources. The Shenzhen office does not
involve emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary and
mobile sources. Therefore, there is no relevant Scope 1 emissions
from Shenzhen.

8 Scope 2 includes emissions caused by purchasing electricity from
power company.

= Scope 3 includes upstream and downstream emissions from waste
paper disposal, water treatment, sewage treatment and business
air travel by employees.

o During the Year, the Group’s total greenhouse gas emissions
increased slightly due to the increase in shipments and also the
full resumption of office, retail shop and warehouse operations
compared to 2022.

2 Since the new retail shop in Tsuen Wan was opened since
December 2023, it is considered by the Group that its impact
on the Group’s environmental performance for the Year is not
significant. Therefore, the area of the Tsuen Wan retail shop is not
included when calculating the intensity indicator.

Energy Conservation management

Through measures such as strengthening scientific management
of energy and improving energy efficiency, the Group can save
energy consumption and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Apart
from reminding employees from time to time to turn off lights, air
conditioners and other unnecessary electronic devices after office
hours or when office spaces (such as meeting rooms) are not in
use. We also choose energy efficient products for replacement
of electronic appliance and devices such as upgrading luminaires
with energy-efficient LED lights so that energy efficiency can be
improved. The Group is also gradually implementing an old vehicle
replacement programme to reduce fuel consumption and related
maintenance costs. In addition, to lower power consumption
among employees, the Group encourages employees to attend
seminars held by environmental protection companies. The Group
also cooperates with its business partners to provide training
to learn from practical experiences and suggestions to raise
the energy saving awareness among employees. In the coming
year, we will continue to monitor the power consumption of the
Group’s business operations and review power-saving measures,
so as to reduce the electricity consumption intensity more
effectively. We set management goals to maintain or reduce the
current level of greenhouse gas intensity and energy intensity
on the base year of 2019, reduce emissions and energy use and
improve energy efficiency in the next few years. In view of the
energy conservation measures implemented, the Group is on the
right track to achieving the goals set.

REE ~ e BRI

Co-Creating Green Operation
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Co-Creating Green Operation

Jealr i

Environmental KPIs Targets 2023 vs. 2022 2023 vs. Baseline year
REBRENER B 202384202248tk 2023 EEFAFL
Greenhouse gas emissions | The Group targets to maintain or reduce the current | Remain the same Decrease by 28.6%
BERBYNR level of GHG emissions intensity based on 2019. wETE H028.6%

RS EEBRIR010F MR HEBA S RIEEE
RBHHEELT -

Energy consumption The Group targets to maintain or reduce the current | Remain the same Decrease by 7.0%
RRERE level of energy consumption intensity based on 2019. BT E HD7.0%

AEE B ERE2019FMER FEB NP RELR

HREE B HKF

During the Reporting Period and the corresponding period in RIFEEAA 2 2022F R ER - TR ik &5
2022, our energy consumption within the scope of this report are AWRIBERBEFEZA T
as follows:

Energy use’®

RERfE°
Consumption
E

Category 2023 2022
E W] 2023FE 2022FE

Gasoline 110.69 94.31 MWh

ST JKELES
Direct energy’ Diesel 1,440.95 1,394.79 MWh
BHER SeH JKFL B

LPG 61.70 79.18 MWh

BILERR JKFL B
Indirect energy Electricity 285.14 298.21 MWh
LR ESW) JK LB
Total energy consumption® 1,898.48 1,866.49 MWh
BEIRMBFEES JKEL B
Energy intensity'® 0.08 0.08 MWh/m?
BEREE JKEE K

7 Since Shenzhen office does not involve fossil fuel combustion from ’ HARRYIPFAE ﬁi&%i?ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬂ?ﬁg{t
stationary and mobile sources, Shenzhen’s office does not involve BB - F R RET S R B
the use of direct energy. IREVER -

& During the Year, the Group's total energy consumption Increased ¢ OREE - AEEHRHESEN 13/\&’%%’/1 j
slightly due to the increase in shipments and also the full resumption = ZEERRE %@’i\iﬁ’l"ﬁ?ﬁ P FLAER
of office, retail shop and warehouse operations compared to 2022. 20225 AL - BEIRMEFEEEIR LT o
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g The calculation of the energy consumption was referenced from
the methods, assumptions and guidelines set out in the following
Guidance and Standards: HKEX's Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs in “How to prepare an ESG Report”.

1 Since the new retail shop in Tsuen Wan opened in December
2023, it is considered by the Group that its impact on the Group’s
environmental performance for the Year is not significant. Therefore,
the area of the Tsuen Wan retail shop is not included when
calculating the intensity indicator.

Air pollutants emissions management

The Group mainly engages in the import and sale of pipes,
fittings and other related accessories products businesses. These
businesses do not involve any production activities while cutting
and remodeling processes are occasionally requested by the
clients, which are immaterial to the environmental impact. Hence,
no material air pollutants are produced in the ordinary course of
business. The air pollutants of the Group mainly come from its use
of natural resources, including emissions of Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (LPG) combustion from cooking stove, emissions of diesel and
gasoline combustion from mobile sources. Apart from the energy
and resource conservation measures mentioned in paragraph
Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions management and Energy
Conservation management, the Group implemented a number
of conservation measures to reduce air pollutants emissions.
For example, drivers have to plan their routes in advance before
departure, when multiple goods are delivered to the same or
nearby locations, the same vehicle should be used so as to shorten
the driving distance and reduce the consumption of gasoline or
diesel. The drivers are to stop and turn off the engine to reduce
energy consumption and air pollutants. The departments using the
vehicles have to ensure that there is no fuel leakage and conduct
regular repairs and maintenance for better energy use efficiency,
and reduce fuel consumption and air pollutants emission due
to part failure. We encourage our employees to save Liquefied
Petroleum Gas by switching the cooking stove off when not in use.
We have set management goals to maintain or reduce the current
level of air pollutants intensity on the base year of 2019, reduce
emissions and energy use and improve energy efficiency in the
next few years. In view of the measures implemented, the Group is
on the right track to achieving the goals set.

BT~ dhE RGO

Co-Creating Green Operation
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Environmental KPI

REBRENEE
Nitrogen Oxides (NO))
intensity
RENYEE The Group targets to
intai duce th
. . Sulphur Oxides (SO ) maiiain of re ulce ¥
Air pollutants emissions intensit X current level of air pollutants
ERSRYBNE ﬁ’*ﬁ{ti@ﬁ“‘ﬁ intensity based on 2019.
e AEBRERE0196HE

Respirable Suspended | B F#FsR A REE RS
Particulates (RSP) DR H)KE o

intensity
ARASRFH T2

2023 vs. 2022
202388202248t

Remain the same

Decrease by 11.1%

2023 vs. Baseline Year

2023 EEF L

BRI BWP11.1%
Increase by 4.0% Decrease by 30.7%
£ 14.0% w30.7%

Remain the same

#ETR #ETR

Remain the same

During the Reporting Period and the corresponding period in RIREEAK2022F FH] - AEBEARE
2022, our air pollutants emissions within the scope of this report HEAN S 5 HERIE RN T

are as follows:

Air pollutants emissions
ERITRYWBERM

Types of emissions

HRyrER
NO, A&
NO, intensity' R YEE?
(in terms of floor area per m2) (AT REESE)
SO, Rl
SO, intensity e mE?
(in terms of floor area per m? ‘000) (LAF'000F 5 K EFEFTH)
RSP AR AR F
RSP intensity2 AIRABR R FRE

(AEF I REERE

(in terms of floor area per m?)

Emissions (kg)

B (A )
2023 2022
20235 E 2022FE
1,901.24 1,844.70
0.08 0.08
11.84 12.36
0.52 0.50
180.68 177.16
0.01 0.01

i The calculation of the air pollutant emission is referenced from i
the methods, assumptions and guidelines set out in the following
Guidance and Standards:

a)  HKEX's Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs in “How to prepare an ESG Report”.

b)  the Technical Guidance for Compilation of Air Pollutant
Emission Inventory of Non-Road Motor Vehicles* (378 BEH#
B) B KRS A MIHE RS B4R R ITHER) issued by the China
Ministry of Environmental Protection* (FR%E A R A1 B3R B (R
EHL) .
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¢)  The China National Standard GB 19147-2016: Automobile
Diesel Fuels* (FBIBIRIZAE GB19147- 2016: BHLEH)
issued by the China National Standardization Management
Committee* (FRIERIZELEHRELZED).

2. Since the new retail shop in Tsuen Wan was opened since December
2023, it is considered by the Group that its impact on the Group's
environmental performance for the Year is not significant. Therefore,
the area of the Tsuen Wan retail shop is not included when
calculating the intensity indicator.

Water Resource Management

The Group continuously monitors water consumption during
business operations and advocates water resource cherishment.
In terms of water usage, apart from water for domestic use,
numerous products of the Group need to be rinsed before
delivery. All sewage generated by the Group is discharged to
the sewage treatment plant through the local sewage collection
system for treatment. The Group has set up a rainwater collection
system in the warehouse, through which the rainwater collected
will be used for sprinkling and cooling the warehouse. If there
is a water leakage problem in the operation area, qualified
personnel will be arranged to repair it immediately. As water used
by the Group is obtained through municipal water supply, we
have no difficulty in water sourcing. During the Year, our water
consumptions'? and water consumption intensity were respectively
1,091.00 (2022: 1,164.00) cubic metres and 0.05 (2022: 0.05)
cubic metres per square metre. Compare with previous years,
water consumption and its intensity remained about the same. We
set management goals to maintain or reduce the current level of
water consumption intensity based on 2019. In view of the water
conservation measures implemented, the Group is on the right
track to achieving the goals set.

B g RBEGEE

Co-Creating Green Operation

J& o 085 0

0 HEEREZELCERZESAMH(P
B RIZAEGB 19147-2016 © EHL
) ©
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Environmental KPI Target 2023 vs. 2022 2023 vs. Baseline Year
BERRERER B 202382202248tk 2023FEEFAALL
Water consumption The Group targets to maintain or reduce the current | Remain the same Decrease by 54.5%
KEFEAZ level of water intensity based on 2019. BRHE BA54.5%

AREE B RRE20195F MER R0 D RARK

HRHKF o

> Currently, water at all sites of operation is obtained through
municipal water supply. As Shenzhen office does not install
independent water meter, therefore, water consumption records
cannot be obtained.

B HAIESEERNMARKEBRTREKRE
G o ORI A E LR B BILKE -
LR BEERAEKE o
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Waste Management and Use of Other Resources

The Group advocates responsible use of various materials,
advocates waste reduction at source and properly disposes of
waste or any remaining waste. Employees are expected to reuse
or recycle materials and products as far as reasonably practicable.
Due to its business nature, the Group consumes enormous
product packaging for the sales of retail products, to assure
product quality and intactness throughout the transportation
process and allow customers to get the product without damage.
The product packing materials are usually plastic bags, nylon bags
and cardboard boxes. During the Year, the Group consumed
about 10.4 (2022: 14.6) tonnes of packaging materials and the
intensity of packaging materials amounted to 0.015 (2022: 0.023)
tonnes per million HK dollars in terms of sales. The packaging
materials consumption decreased compared to 2022, primarily
due to an increase in orders delivered in their original packaging
or container without unpacking and repackaging, thus reducing
packaging materials consumption.

The Group encourages employees to recycle and reuse office
supplies, sort and recycle waste, and reduce the generation
of waste. During the Year, we implemented various resource
optimization measures. In terms of paper, we implement paperless
office, mainly use electronic means for internal and external
communications to lower the copying or printing needs. We
also implemented a new ERP system to digitize and store data
in a centralized database with the aim to reduce the need for
traditional paper documents. The waste paper collected with the
Group's waste paper recycling box is delivered to waste recyclers
for recycling and reuse on a regular base. During the Reporting
Period, 302.92 (2022: 289.11) tonnes of non-hazardous wastes
were generated by the Group, including office paper and other
daily waste, with an intensity of 0.013 (2022: 0.012) tonne per
square metre. The hazardous wastes generated by the Group
include light bulbs and fluorescent tubes, with the total amount
of 0.076 (2022: 0.063) metric tons and an intensity of 0.003
(2022: 0.003) tonne per thousand square metres. Compared with
previous year, the data on non-hazardous waste intensity has
slightly increased while the data on hazardous waste intensity has
remained about the same. We set management goals to maintain
or reduce the current level of hazardous waste intensity and non-
hazardous waste intensity on the base year of 2019. In view of the
resource optimization measures implemented, the Group is on the
right track to achieving the goals set.
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Environmental KPIs Targets 2023 vs. 2022 2023 vs. Baseline Year
RERRENES B 202382202248tk 2023FEREFARLL
Hazardous waste The Group targets to maintain or reduce the current | Remain the same Remain the same
BEREEY level of hazardous waste intensity based on 2019. wETE wETE
AEERRRE2019F AR FERIAIRERS
BEEMBEERIKF
Non-hazardous waste The Group targets to maintain or reduce the current | Increase by 8.3% Increase by 62.5%
EZEEY level of non-hazardous waste intensity based on 2019. | 1#£118.3% #1062.5%
AKEBRRE2019FMER FERIRALRERS
BEWEENATE -
Tackling Climate Change EHRIREL

Facing the urgency of mitigating climate change, countries around
the world are advocating the development of a low-carbon
economy and carbon neutrality. For that, the Group also actively
pays attention to and takes corresponding actions in practising
green and low-carbon sustainable development.

The Group recognises climate change poses potential risks to its
business operations, including policy, legal, technological and
market changes caused by intensifying extreme weather, rising
sea level, chronic heat waves and low-carbon transition, which
may affect its business performance and add instability to its
sustainable development. In order to promote effective climate
change management, the Group has formulated corresponding
climate change risk response plans to strengthen its climate
adaptability and resilience. Based on the characteristics of the
industry, combined with the Group’s own situation and strategic
objectives, we have identified and assessed the risk level of
climate change risks. At the same time, we would optimize
the use of resources and energy. In response to disasters and
accidents caused by extreme weather, we are keen to improve the
disaster response capabilities and awareness of the company and
employees. The following climate related risks have no material
adverse impacts or consequence on China Pipe in the current
Year.

EERERIERZ L EY T - EREEHE
BEERERCBENRTAN - KBt - XEH
IMEGEEE W RIAEITE) - BRAA BRI
ARERR -

AEEERIRRECHARBEB L ER
REERR - BREBmARME - EFE L
7t REPRKEMERNEEHRNEEK X
2 JTAmSEL - AIREFEAKENE
BRAVHEAFEERENTIRERE -
RIEEERNOREE(CER  AEEHET
MHEHNREE(CRREE TR - LIERRIE
ERRENMETEE N - BARBITERE
BEAEEBFBRANMEEBE  HRikE
ERBRETT TR MEAREROTE - B
B HAEECERMERNER - #HH&
MARBHHEMLENMEY - BFIBER
FRARMEIMXERHENMER - XA
FE - ATREEBRRYTEEXRES KA
TR ERIER °
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Co-Creating Green Operation

Jealr i

Climate related risks

R AR

Acute physical risks
SUERRRE

Impacts on operations Preventative and mitigation measures

HEENTE TERE MR AR e

Flooding, super
typhoon or extreme
rainfall

KR - HREE
RimbE R

The Group likely suffers from supply | —  Establish an emergency response team
chain disruption, demand drop impact, and hold emergency preparedness
damage to infrastructure and facilities, meeting to formulate and improve
and increased operating costs due to the Group’s crisis management and
maintenance of damaged facilities. transition plans regarding acute
AEBE B SRS EEFPE - FTK extreme weather events;
TRYE EREZINREIBOENE | - KIBSIENMMEERBTFERSE
MRS BRI BB ER LGN Haz UHEkTEEEEH SN
18R 3 K SR B B 8 % B T R0 R R 5T
-

—  Strengthen emergency plans and
conduct emergency drills for acute
extreme weather so as to avoid
economic losses and safety incidents to
the greatest extent.

- INER MR R R R S TR B B I
TRZER S KRIBEHRBEBFEE
B2 HRW -

Chronic physical risks

eMEEER

Rising temperatures

SR BTt

The risk may lead to higher electricity | — Formulate emergency plans for
demand and operating costs, extreme weather and reminders for
increased risk of work-related injuries, safe. For example, employees who
higher employee turnover and lower work outdoors under continuous high
productivity. temperature weather are reminded to
R AT RESI BB B Sk E B A £ find suitable places to rest resumption
T EMIGER - BIRAEEAM of work.

HENTE - - HEBRARESEREZEZRET

Pl ERBRAT - BRENT I
M8 T HA BB KB BIRE T
fE -
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Co-Creating Green Operation

el il

Climate related risks
Rz ERAE B

Transitional risks

HAE b

Policy and regulatory The Group have to adapt to the
risks tightened laws and regulations imposed
ERERANE A6 2 e by the government or any regulatory | —
bodies due to climate change, as well | —
as bear the risk of potential litigation or
penalties once we fail to obligate the Listing Rules.

new regulations. - FEERESLMBRAMESGHREE
REBAABBT S EERIBESR Bl

R MEBEEREEERER - I
AE—BREBITINERHBEFRAK
BRETEV R ©

The Group have to increase investment | —
in technology, such as enhancing green
building technology requirements and
investing in emerging technologies.
REBBAEMAREMBNA - IR &
BEERMELR - REHERMSE

Impacts on operations

HEENTE

Preventative and mitigation measures

TR MR R I

Monitor the updates of environmental
laws and regulations in advance;
RATEEIRIR(RARE 5

Continue monitoring of the ESG
reporting standards of the Hong Kong

Technology risks
sy

Closely monitor and evaluate the
progress of new technology research
and development, and strengthen
control over investments in new
technologies through cost analysis,
investment return analysis, and other
means.

- BUEERERFGEFRTHEER - B
BRADH - REBBESNFER
INSEFEM R E S -
Continuously improve the green
standards of raw materials, promote
environmentally friendly procurement
practices, and strengthen control over
supply chain sustainability risks.
FEREFHGEREREE  HER
TRERHE I fN 58 B 122 ] 455 48 M 4 e g

Market risks
hizE kg

The Group have to adopt environmentally | —
friendly building materials that may
increase costs and potentially impact
the steady supply of the materials in the
supply chain.

REBVRRARREEME - EFT8E | -
SIE AR AT B R B A PR SR A KL B9 1

EARLTE - % o
Sustainable Finance KiEEH

The Group supports the vision for sustainable development and
our business strategy by leveraging sustainable financing.

We took a collaborative approach to work with global financial
institutions. During the Reporting Period, we offered an HKD5
million fund to the Green Deposit Program originated by a
financial institution, which will be exclusively used for the issuance
of green loans to support projects on delivering energy efficiency,
clean production, clean energy, environmental and ecological
conservation, infrastructure development, green upgrade, and
other green services that generate environmental benefits. We
believe that using financial instruments to support green projects
will benefit both China Pipe and our stakeholders. This is an
indispensable part of China Pipe’s vision and long-term value
creation.

AEBEANAKESRRIFHEERN
FES AT I R AFRAT

HPRBRBED B2 RSHEBESE - &
SR - ZAIRSREEREN BTG
RHTS00BETE S - BFIARNERZ
BER - XFERNa  BREE  BRE
R RBEARRE  ERER SR
FEERFMGNAERE - RAEEFB
R TAXKSEIBEPEEXEMEED
EX o AT EEXRENRNEELE
A SKEREY — B ©
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Social Corporate Responsibility
& SRR

While the Group is actively developing its business, the Group has
also been actively fulfilling its corporate community responsibilities,
and supporting various community engagements, and continuing
to bring positive impacts to the community. The Group has long
been dedicated to caring for vulnerable groups in the community.
We implement the corporate mission “To take from society,
while to give back to society”. Through the establishment of
two policies, the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and the
Community Policy, employees are encouraged to contribute to
the society through voluntary activities and donations to the
community, and bring a positive impact to the society. During
the Reporting Period, the Group contributed charitable donations
and fundraising activities of approximately HK$23,000 (2022:
HK$8,200) in order to support initiatives which focus on the
forementioned areas.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to make use of its
own industry characteristics and advantages, actively cooperate
with charitable organizations, participate in different community
investment and public welfare activities, and give back to the
society in various ways and grow together with the society.

Caring “Inclusion” - Joy Charity Walk 2023
BR[| - ZEH1T52023

AEBTERBRGEEESNRE  AEEH—
EFWEGE% ANREMF  XESELER
CHEANREREMTZE - AEERS
ﬁﬁ%@@ﬁ@%%ﬁﬁ BAIATERFE 4L
g AREAEIALERE - BREM(RE
HEETHE) M (EEBER) MEEER @ &
@alﬁﬂ%%é%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁA
AHEeEREMFE - RIFEHR - AEE
BEIES BB FUAMERFEE 423,000
B0 (2022 8,200 0) 5 il B AYE
@Jo

RERR  NEBGESEFAAFNITER

EREDY BGHEZEZEBAE  26TH

ﬁE&éﬂ“Aﬁ@ ZpEbgELE - &
g HERKE -

China Pipe takes an active participation in the charity activities organized by the Hong Kong Federation of
Handicapped Youth to show our support to the handicapped. Through our active participation, we hope to
advocate for equal opportunities for the handicapped and expand rehabilitation services and assisting them to fully

integrate, participate, and contribute to the society.

TEEXEG2EFTESREEFHERERNBZEY  REHFOERENTF - AMAFBEBRMANERS
B EEFLERENTERE  ARERRY  EBeMRoBALE  2EMENERME -
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Social Corporate Responsibility

L& SR RAT

“Mid-Autumn Festival” 2023 Charity Bazaar and Visiting Activities
2023[ R FKET | B IREHEE)

The social enterprise “3H Handicraft” under the Mission to New Arrivals Limited trains grassroots ladies and sells
different hand-made products made by them, so that they can take care of the family at home while earning
income to help support the family. China Pipe has shown great support by purchasing their hand-made lucky bag
including hand-made mooncakes, hand-made lanterns and tea bags, and also delivering them to the vulnerable
groups to promote our caring for the community.

FBELHEERIAE THE[FRERIFIEBRL - HEMFIRENSZET TR - FfIT A RER
A ERRBBMAEMZRG - EEEOANXE BETEREFIAS  FIREMREEANTIRER X
EHEXRGISEER  WEHRMELENEE -

: > FEBLIEE o EALE

ji;amh Y. 4 7 Mission To New Arivls Liited SHhondira
O
b =0
o A

v ZERLH
Bun Kee (International) Limited

Py TS, HMAETE2023 - WERVHED .
FAIRSS/ )\ MRt . ]
HEREIEAR DIREIE L4 y

! —®-=&nA-+-R . ‘C,

co, RAKHE WHF .

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 4 % 77



78

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
REL - L@ BRI o

Social Corporate Responsibility

& SRR

Caring for the Community Action 2023 — Mid-Autumn Festival Volunteer Activities

BE1E E1TE2023 — B ITES

China Pipe Volunteer Team visited the elderlies to celebrate a happy Mid-Autumn Festival, and offered mooncake
gift sets and daily necessities. We hope to express our care and concern for the elderlies and promote the concept
of caring, and serving the community.

TREXZTEGRSRE - HEDKES - IRXAHRINEEAR - AMAFERERMEREOBIRNE
O ERARER - RBERAER
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Social Corporate Responsibility

L& SR RAT

Joint Caring Event 2023 — Happy Bags Delivery to Elderly
RIEHE{TEH2023 -FLERERE

China Pipe Volunteer Team came visited the elderlies and offered lucky bags including rice and Mid-Autumn
Festival traditional food. We hope to express our concern for the elderlies, promote the concept of caring, and
serving the community.

PREEEZRTEKRIREERE - UBEAKNTFREHRBFER - FEREHRENEER - LHRAEHE
ARISAL R AR o

E HKFENC @ smmuranenss )
-

= Qnounn am
=
i § 8 Joint Caring Event ] [} . a

T
Joint Happy, very to Elderly '

T T

CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION

oy
~TRNA

#F PRESENTED TO

; BuKee(nermational)lti,.

RERBR WRHETH2023
Sponsor and participated in a Joint Caring Event 2023

23.09.2023
‘:il BMOATE ?
| o EES &
= Ogan Door Ministries Limited - b %
I = = e
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Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary
Pt — : BRI ML 6 B BRI

Environmental KPI 2023 2022
REBRERES 20235 2026
Emission

2387

Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 1,901.24 1,844.70
Ry T

NO, intensity kg/m? 0.08 0.08
RRULYEE T/ FHK

Sulphur Oxides (SO) kg 11.84 12.36
kR T

SO, intensity kg/m? ‘000 0.52 0.50
HeltnEE F%,/000F K

Respirable Suspended Particulates (RSP) kg 180.68 177.16
RABTH T T

RSP intensity kg/m? 0.01 0.01
ARABINFRE Fr/FHK

GHG emissions

BERBHN

Direct GHG emissions (scope 1)'4' tonnes of CO,-e 401.10 389.54
BRAERBHMR(EE) AM_EtiREE

Indirect GHG emissions (scope 2)' tonnes of CO,-e 118.95 117.93
R RERBHM(EE2) " AM_atiREE

Other indirect GHG emissions (scope 3)"” tonnes of CO,-e 17.68 8.68
H R = REEHER (BE3) 7 NM_atiREE

GHG emissions in total (scope 1, 2 and 3)'® tonnes of CO,-e 537.73 516.15
REREBHNEE (HE, 21k3)® NM_atiREE

GHG intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) tonnes of CO,-e/square metre 0.02 0.02
RERBHNEE CAST 7 REEAH) NE_EfLiREE/TAXK

Energy consumption

ERFERAE

Direct energy consumption MWh 1,613.34 1,568.28
BERRERAS JKELES

Indirect energy consumption MWh 285.14 298.21
BEERERE JKELRS

Total energy consumption' MWh 1,898.48 1,866.49
EREREE JEEL RS

Energy intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) MWh/square metre 0.08

RERREREE AB T KEEH)

K FIK

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED " EIE ¥ 5B HR 2 d

0.081 35



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB~ A& RS
Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary

Bih gk — + BRI B 6y BH B A AR AR

Environmental KPI Unit 2023 2022
REHBERER By 20235 E 20226
Water consumption®
KRFEF®
Total water consumption cubic metre 1,091.00 1,164.00
FK@EE AV PN
Water consumption intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) cubic metre/square metre 0.05 0.05
FRBE CAGF 7 KEESS) NFERFRA
Waste Generation
BREYELE
Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 302.9 289.1
BEREDEE NI
Non-hazardous waste intensity (in terms of floor area per m?) tonnes/square metre 0.013 0.012
BERENEE USTHREETE) N YE P
Total hazardous waste tonnes 0.076 0.063
BERENEE N
Hazardous waste intensity (in terms of floor area per 1,000 m?)  tonnes/1,000 square metre 0.003 0.003
BEEENEE USTEARERETE) AW/ FEIIK
Packaging material use
BEMNBHER
Total packaging materials tonnes 10.39 14.63
BEMHESE NI
Intensity of packaging materials (in terms of sales) tonnes/million HKD 0.015 0.023
BEMBEE CAEEEHE) NWE/BEET

1 As Shenzhen office does not involve in the emissions of combustion o SR A ES R EEIR R B ER(E A BRE

20

of fossil fuel from stationary and mobile source, therefore, there are

no relevant air emissions.

Scope 1 includes emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary s #EN
and mobile sources. The Shenzhen's office does not involve in the
emissions of fossil fuel combustion from stationary and mobile

sources. Therefore, there is no relevant Scope 1 emissions.

Scope 2 includes emissions caused by purchasing electricity from LS

power company.

Scope 3 includes upstream and downstream emissions from waste 2

paper disposal, water treatment, sewage treatment and business air & B TR M Ze 2 Pl 3 ks I T bsHE
travel by employees. e

During the Year, the Group's total greenhouse gas emissions B RFE AEBBHNHESEM - UERFEQ
increased slightly due to the increase in shipments and also the = -TEERE E%@%@V—@ FFT LA B2

full resumption of office, retail shop and warehouse operations

compared to 2022.

During the Year, the Group's energy consumption increased slightly L

due to the increase in shipments and fossil fuel consumption SN - FTLAEE2022F A8 - BEIRFEA 2
compared to 2022. MEFH -
Currently, water at all sites of operation is obtained through = ﬁﬁ %Lgﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁiﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁméﬁk

BB ©

B o RINPJRE

2022 fAL

/J]]l:l:

REE - AEEHR

HERBEMAEE  R/KEE -

NEIBE

(o=
B2

J@?%Sk?%ﬂ’]?#ﬁ&l BOL B R EE B -

@%}Fé & TE R 5 A2 E R AL A R
N5 K B R N B B
7‘J§1EEW§M%§E’JEFE& HORBHRBENEE
TEOBER ©

BE2RERABRES BHMSIE

ek

BB SR LT -

RAL AR H#E

municipal water supply. As Shenzhen’s office does not install
independent water meter, therefore, water consumption cannot be
obtained.

FYIMAEI R BB KEE - B
N %E’Xf@ki °
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Appendix I: Environmental and Social KPIs Summary
Pt — : BRI ML 6 B BRI

Social KPI 2023 2022
HERRERER 2023FE 20224
Number of employees
ETAH
Hong Kong People 157 144
e A
Geographical region  Macau People 4 4
& R A
Mainland China — Shenzhen People 6 7
R B At — R A
Male People 112 102
Gender B AEK
R Female People 55 53
wi AL
Below 30 People 18 17
30BRA R A
Age group 30-50 People 67 69
FicaR 30-507% A
Above 50 People 82 69
503 A = N
Management People 8 5
BEAR AL
Employee category Department head/manager People 19 25
& B 7 BPIEE, 438 AL
General staff People 140 125
—RET AL
Full-time People 164 155
Employment type g2 AR
EfRsRR Part-time People 3 0
FREL AL
Total number of employees People 167 155
BMET A AL

82 CHINA PIPE GROUPLIMITED " B E % £ B AR 2 A
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Bk st — « BRI Bk 67 BR B BRI R

Employee turnover rate?' 2023 2022
BIfKtE & 2023FE 20226 E
Hong Kong % 12.7 36.1
BE B
Geographical region  Macau % 0.0 0.0
b= SBFS Btk
Mainland China — Shenzhen? % 0.0 0.0
A A b — R 22 Btk
Male % 13.4 31.4
Gender Bt BHL
PR Female % 9.1 37.7
egis Btk
Below 30 % 5.6 35.3
305 A TN Bl
Age group 30-50 % 11.9 47.8
FicaR 30-503% Bt
Above 50 % 13.4 18.8
S50BRA = Bkt
Total employee turnover rate % 12.0 33.5
WETmALE = Bkt

21

22

Turnover rate for employees in the relevant categories = L(x)/
E(x) X 100, L(x) = Number of employees leave employment in the
specified category, E(x) = Number of total employees in the specified
category.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the number of employees in
Shenzhen office decreased by one compared to 2022 because one
employee was reassigned from Shenzhen office to Hong Kong office.
During the Reporting Period, there were no employee resignations in
Shenzhen-office.

21

22

FERIMMALE®E = L(x) / EX) x 100 * L(x) =
ZIERIE THBEBAS  Ex) = ZHERIET

-

HEREHR - FYPLEE T AHE2022
FERDIA  ERARI1EE IR AE A
TERBPAR o MEHRN - FIHRAELRE

8 TBERY -
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b % —

P BREE R & B AU IR R

Employee training? 2023 2022
BTy 2023 E 20224
Percentage of trained male employees % 69.8 69.4
BHZIESL Bkt
Percentage of trained female employees % 30.2 30.6
R Average training hours for male employees Hour 1.6 3.3
B85  88 I
Average training hours for female employees  Hour 2.6 2.6
S S 4553 2 J\E$
Percentage of trained management % 3.0 1.9
BEEBEABXIESL Atk
Percentage of trained department head/
manager % 7.3 11.2
BPEE KEZIIES Bkt
Percentage of trained general staff % 89.7 86.9
e 8 %85 Average training hours for management Hour 33 0.7
EIRAB IR (NS
Average training hours for department head/
manager Hour 3.8 6.6
BPIEE 4B T 5 IR 8L g
Average training hours for general staff Hour 1.6 24
—ARB T F IR 2 /B

23

The calculation is referenced from the methods, assumptions and
guidelines set out in the following Guidance and Standards: HKEX's
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs in “How to prepare
an ESG Report” to calculate percentage of employees trained.
Percentage of employees trained in the relevant categories = T(x)/T
x 100, T(x) = Number of employees who took part in training in the
specified category, T = Number of total employees who took part in

training.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED " EIE ¥ 5B HR 2 d
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Bk st — « BRI Bk 67 BR B BRI R

Work-related injuries 2023 2022
EIZE 2023FE 20226 %
Male number 4 4
Number of S AR
work-related injury
BT S8 A Female number 1 0
pegca AE
Male number of days 30 693
Lost days due to S TR
work-related injury
ET{Ei8% TER S Female number of days 5 0
pegca TEHE
Work-related fatalities Unit 2023 2022 2021
EIXT By 2023FE 2022FE 202156FE
Number and rate of work-related fatalities number (%) 0 (0.0) 0 (0.0) 0 (0.0)
AT T AB KL R AE(A7LL)
e |
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Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX

fHgk— : RGN (BB - g REBHSRGD) K9l

Content of Indicator

EERR

Relevant Sections

HRREE

Page Index

RRR5|

A. Environmental Aspect

A REHE
A1: Emissions
A1 BB
General Disclosure  Information on: Co-Creating Green Operation 65-75
— R E (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
AHABERIORERBHR - MK R HEREEE
5 AEREERYVNELSH
(@ BEK: &
(b) BFHETABEAZENEB RIS
HYE RS o
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Energy Conservation and Emission 66-71, 80-85
data. Reduction Management
Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
BEn i@ R ARRE HE R ERRER P B 12
fisk— : BIR R B RREBUEITE
z
Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 80-85
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where ~ KPIs Summary
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
B (B8R Rt REE (BE2) RERBHENE  Wik—  RERLSHRERERE
(CAMEEHE) & (@) B2 (WA ES B - -3
FIARMETH)
A13 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, ~ Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 80-85
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of KPIs Summary
production volume, per facility).
PREEAEREEYEE CAEAE) RERE  Misk—  RERMSRRENIRIERE
BN EEE SN - #IARETE) 2
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 80-85

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
FIEASREREEYAE CAE) kR (En) &
E (WA BESEM - BIERMETE) ©

KPIs Summary

s — : RENL SBREVIERR

5]
=

86
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Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX
W — : HFERH CGREL - & REREGERE) Rl

Relevant Sections

HRREE

Page Index

RRR5|

A15 Description of emission target(s) set and steps Energy Conservation management 67-71
taken to achieve them. Air pollutants emissions management
HWRFEI MR E A ERREDEL BRI HaER
B - TR TR RE R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Waste Management and Use of 72-73
hazardous wastes are handled, and a description ~ Other Resources
of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
WLREEENESEEMN S - il  BEVERREMERER
FTALEYRE B IR R ARERE L B ARPAERERA 2
A2: Use of Resources
A2 : EREA
General Disclosure  Policies on efficient use of resources including Energy Conservation and Emission 66-73
— iR energy, water, and other raw materials. Reduction Management
Water Resource Management
Waste Management and Use of
Other Resources
BRERBR(BERER  KREMRMED OB EeREEE R
®e KERER
BEEMERREMERER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Energy Conservation and Emission 66-71, 80-85
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in Reduction Management
‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production Appendix I: Environmental and Social
volume, per facility). KPIs Summary
RERESMEER AR (NE R HRAHER
R EFEEUTETEEAE) REEWNEE  Wik—  RERESHERERIERE
BEf  BEREAE) - 2
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. Water Resource Management 71, 80-85
per unit of production volume, per facility). Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
RFKEREE WABEESEM - BERMT  KERER
&) - Btk — : MR R SRIRBRURIR
Z
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set ~ Energy Conservation and Emission 66-71

and steps taken to achieve them.
AT MR RE AR E B R R REDIELR
IRFTERER B P8R, -

Reduction Management
ERRERLEE B2
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Appendix II: ESG Reporting Guide Content Index of HKEX

fHgk— : RGN (BB - g REBHSRGD) K9l

Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index
ERRE HEEH HiRS
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Water Resource Management 71

sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water

efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.

HACKEERKR AT B EMERE - URMETYL  KERER

Rk B AR R ARE R E L B IRATEREREY

B
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Waste Management and Use of 72-73, 80-85

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

Bk o P AR BT E (AMRRHE) & (038

Other Resources
Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary

BEEMER L EMERER

B BEEBRIES - fisk— : BB R G BREBUEIRE
Z
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 BRERRAER
General Disclosure  Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant Co-Creating Green Operation 65-75
—REE impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
BEBTAHRERRABREREATENE  HEGELEE
% o
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities ~ Co-Creating Green Operation 65-75
on the environment and natural resources and
actions taken to manage them.
HWAEBEDHREIAABRNEATERE HERELE
RRMEREBTENTD -
A4: Climate Change
A4 RIRE{L
General Disclosure  Policies on identification and mitigation of Tackling Climate Change 73-75
—RRE significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRINEEER LA HETAEARENE BYREEL
RRIFEFEEEHNBR -
A4 Description of the significant climate-related Tackling Climate Change 73-75
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them. ) aﬁ
HRBERAREHBETAELTENEARE BYREE(L X

BEAEE - REHTE -
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P — : IR S CBRBE ~ 3L g RAEREEIRED Rl

Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index
ERRE HEEH HiRS
B. Social Aspect
B #EHE
B1: Employment
B1: fEf%
General Disclosure  Information on: Employment Structure Management ~ 58-61
—REE (a) the policies; and Employee Rights and Benefits
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
RRAFMLEE BERES TERE R EREBEE
- rE#Re  Zat REEUREMEER 8THEREN
EVll:0
@ BE: Rk
(b) BTHEITABEATENRBEE LA
HER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 80-85
(for example, full-or part-time), age group and KPIs Summary
geographical region. Bigr— : BRIE R SRR A U
BRI BREER (M2BEER) FRENR Z
MEEDHESEE -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group Appendix I: Environmental and Social ~ 80-85
and geographical region. KPIs Summary
IR - FiclR Mt B8 D HE B IRKL Bk — : IR R SRIRBRURIR
B2: Health and Safety
B2 : REHEZE
General Disclosure  Information on: Occupational Safety and Health 62-63

— = (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

BRRHZ2THERERREREBLBELR
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@) B R
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Content of Indicator

EERR

L H (GRS~ da LE RS ®5l

Relevant Sections

HRREE

Page Index

RRR5|

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational Safety and Health 62-63, 80-85
occurred in each of the past three years including ~ Appendix I: Environmental and Social
the reporting year. KPIs Summary
BEZF (BRERFER)BFRAITHNARR BEZZEER
L - fisk— : IR R GRREBUEIRE
2
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Safety and Health 62-63, 80-85
Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary
TEBATIER - BRTr R
gk — - IR R BB EBIERTE
Z
B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational Safety and Health 62-63
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HRATRAR B R R E L 25 - URABRH BEL2EER
TRERTE -
B3: Development and Training
B3 : HERIE
General Disclosure  Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and  Nurturing of Key Talents 63-64
—RRE skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.
BFRRAREBTILIEBENABREENE  BRMATES
K o BRIEIES -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender ~ Nurturing of Key Talents 63-64, 80-85
and employee category (e.g. senior management,  Appendix I: Environmental and Social
middle management). KPIs Summary
RURIREERR(WSRERRE  +REBE BRATES
F)EHNXIEEB DL - Btk — : RIR R S RIRERUEIRTS
2
B3.2 The average training hours completed per Nurturing of Key Talents 63-64, 80-85

employee by gender and employee category.

IR BB IERIE D
B

- BREEEXTINF

Appendix I: Environmental and Social
KPIs Summary

BERASIEE

BisE— - BIR Rt @ BIR A RIS IR
2
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Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index

EERR HRREE RRR5|

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : T %8|

General Disclosure  Information on: Employment Structure Management 58-59
— = (a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

BRM LETRAH ST : EREBER
@ HBE: Rk
(b) BTHEITABERTENRBEE LA
B -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Employment Structure Management ~ 58-59

practices to avoid child and forced labour
HlRRBEMNEEARRET KRS  EBRREEE
To

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate non- Employment Structure Management ~ 58-59
compliance when discovered.
HWABEREREAERERBEMERENS EREBEE

B5: Supply Chain Management
BS : ftIEEERE

General Disclosure  Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain Management 55-57
—MiRE risks of the supply chain.
ERERENRERMGRERBR - IR ER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management 55-57
miE S D EREE - HERER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management 55-57

suppliers, number of suppliers where the

practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.

AR REERNED - MERTERENN {tEEER
HEREA - UNRERERINHITRERE -

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management 55-57
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
HAAEBAHEESERFNREIM AR HERER
BED - AR TRER X -

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management 55-57
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HRERERERRREZARRERLREN HERER
B AR TRER X
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Content of Indicator

EERR

Relevant Sections

HRREE

Page Index
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B6: Product Responsibility

B6 : EmME(E

General Disclosure

—fRIEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BAMRBERNRENREEERZE  BE 1§

BRALREEARRERT A

(@ B&E: &k

(b) BFHBEITABEATEORREERA]
HEH -

Compliant Business Environment

BRERRE

51-57

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EEYEEXEmBY T EL 2 BEFRHMA
Bl GoERN A

Product Quality Control

53

EmmEEE

51-52

B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with
BRANERRREHRFEE AREH S
Pl

Customer Service Quality

EPRBEER

57

B6.3

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
R A R RE B E B RN E -

Information Security Management

i
i

#

BZE

53

B6.4

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures
S BT BIE R E mE R T o

Product Quality Control

3

o

b

EmmE

A

51-52

B6.5

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

HUH B & BURRIE RALREGER -
RERTE

PARARRTT

Information Security Management

{

hall]3

BZEER

53
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Content of Indicator Relevant Sections Page Index

EERR HRREE RRR5|

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 : RE&

General Disclosure  Information on:
—RE (@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering.
BRDILHRRE - BR - BGFROEREM
@ BE: Rk
(b) BFHEITABERZENEBEERIRS
HYE RS o

Building a Culture of Integrity

BRERL

53-54

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the Reporting Period and the
outcomes of the cases.
%E%%W%?”Aiﬁ@%hﬁia% ENE
EARARMEE MR RER

Building a Culture of Integrity

BRI

53-54

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

P B R R REF - AREBRTRES
% o

Building a Culture of Integrity

BRI

53-54

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.

HARESNE TREMREFHE

Building a Culture of Integrity

BRI

53-54

B8: Community Investment

BS : HEKRE

General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to

—REE understand the needs of the communities where
the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
takes into consideration communities’ interests.
BRUELER T REBMITAEEZMER
HEBRDHEERMEMEABEER o

Social Corporate Responsibility

HELXRE

76-79

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).
g&ﬂﬁ@%mﬁﬁ‘ﬁ BEH - HIER
f2gz - >k

Social Corporate Responsibility

HELXRE

76-79

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area.

EETHRMEAER (NS HREHE) o

Social Corporate Responsibility

HELXRE
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure
in presenting their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 121.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In accordance with the relevant provision of the Bye-laws of
the Company: 1. The Company in general meeting may declare
dividends in any currency but no dividends shall exceed the
amount recommended by the Board. 2. The Board may subject to
Bye-laws from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by the position
of the Company. 3. The Board may also pay half-yearly or at
other suitable intervals to be settled by it any dividend which may
be payable at a fixed rate if the Board is of the opinion that the
profits justify the payment. 4. No dividend shall be declared or
paid and no distribution of contributed surplus made otherwise
than in accordance with the Statutes. No dividend shall be paid
otherwise than out of profits available for distribution. 5. The
Company may distribute dividends by way of cash or scrip.

The Company’s ability to distribute dividends will depend on,
among others, the operating results, cash flow, financial condition
and capital requirements of the Group and the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company’s distribution
of dividends shall also comply with any restrictions under the
Bermuda Companies Act and the Bye-laws of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

The details of financial risk management of the Group are set out
in Note 3 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the section
headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

The compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group is set out in this “Report of
Directors” and the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibilities and Services and Environmental
policies

The Group is committed in promoting the sustainable
development of both the environment and the society.

We believe it is more blessed to give than to receive. As such, we
support and encourage our employees to participate in community
service activities. With the support from the management team,
our core business company, Bun Kee (International) Limited
("Bun Kee") is committed to participate and support social
services activities. In this regard, Bun Kee has awarded the
Caring Company logo in recognition of our corporate social
responsibility’s participation and commitment. We also believe
in the ripple effect which those people, whom we helped, will in
turn help others who are in need.

With regards to environmental policy, we pay a great deal
of attention to promoting environmental protection. We will
integrate environmental awareness in our daily operations
including:

e  Reduce electricity consumption, improve energy efficiency,
use of energy-efficient products to replace the appliances
and equipment;
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Turn off lightings, air-conditioners and electrical appliances in
offices after working hours, or when rooms not being used,
for instance, the conference rooms;

Use electronic means for communications internally and with
external parties;

Reduce the need to copy and print. Use of recycled
paper, copy and print on both sides of the paper, where
appropriate; and

Re-use of office supplies (such as single-sided paper, paper
clips, envelopes, file folders, paper bags, plastic bags).

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group understands and supports that employees, customers,
suppliers and business partners, investors and shareholders are
vital to our sustainable and stable development.

(@)

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Employees

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. Our employee
handbook outlines terms and conditions of employment,
code of conduct and employee benefits. We promote
harmony and respect in our workplace. Employees are one
of our most important assets. To that end, we provide self-
improvement and advancement opportunities as well as a
safe workplace in order to retain high calibre employees. The
Group values the well-being and health of our employees
and therefore provides medical insurance coverage and
benefits to our employees. In addition, we will organize staff
gathering quarterly and annual dinner, all management will
also participate to maintain good relations with employees
and promote two-way communication. The Company
will conduct staff appraisal annually, and also provide
exit interviews for the outgoing employees. We adopt an
open policy to allow employees at any time, by email or in
person to the department managers or Human Resources
department to express their views.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Customers

We provide high quality products to our customers constantly
as it is the best way to retain customers and business growth.
Our sales team will visit customers regularly to keep abreast
of new opportunities and challenges. All opinions received
will be prompt handled by the relevant team. We grow up
together with most of our customers in past years and we
have established solid and long-term relationships with them.
We also have built up a trust and good reputation among
our customers over the years.

Suppliers and business partners

For our suppliers and business partners, we strive to maintain
a stable and long-term relationship with them. The Group's
procurement is based on our stringent suppliers’ selection
criteria. To ensure the highest quality of products, the Group
has requested the suppliers to provide product certification.
In addition, we engaged highly reputable independent
laboratories for quality testing to ensure that the products
comply with local and international standards. Our sales
team and procurement team will have regular visit to our
suppliers’ factories for inspection. In order to allow our
customers to have direct feedback channel to the suppliers,
we will also organize some factory tours to the customers.
This can let them better understanding of the production
flow and products quality affirmation in order to win the
utmost confidence of customers.

Investors and shareholders

For the investors and shareholders, we maintain a high
level of transparency and communicate with them through
meetings, announcements and circulars. The Company
maintains a website, the information will be updated from
time to time. In addition, a dedicated email address is set out
in the “IR Contact” section of the Company’s website for
investor and general public inquiry.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately HK$144.2 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.
SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 23 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2023
are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Bermuda Companies Act, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Fulin (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson
Mr. Chen Wei Wen

Mr. Guan Zhigiang

Mr. Wang Chaolong

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Lai Fulin and Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that
all of them are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has
entered in to any service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors and their respective associates has an
interest in any business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group engaged.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May
2015, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “2015 Scheme") under which the
directors of the Company may grant options to eligible persons
to subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption.

The 2015 Scheme

The details of 2015 Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the 2015 Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions or potential contributions
made or to be made by the participants to the Group, to
motivate the participants to optimize their performance and
efficiency for the benefit of the Group, and to maintain or
attract business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the
Group.

(b) Participants

The Board may offer to grant options to the participants
which means (i) any director (including any executive director,
non-executive director or independent non- executive
director) of any member of the Group; (i) any employee
(whether in full time or part-time employment) of any
member of the Group; (iii) any consultant, adviser, supplier,
customer or subcontractor of the Group, and (iv) any other
person whatsoever from time to time determined by the
Board as having contributed to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group.
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(d)

(e)

()

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the general meeting
of the Company approving the Scheme. The number of
shares may be refreshed by the approval of the shareholders
and the refreshed limit of the number of shares must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
the date of the approval of the refreshed limit. The maximum
number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 133,226,600 Shares, representing 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised or outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised unless otherwise specified in the relevant
offer letter.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

Pursuant to the Scheme, HK$10 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the option within 28 days
from the date of grant of the option.

(c)

(d)

(e)

()
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(g) Basis determining the subscription price

(h

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Scheme shall be a price determined
by the Board and notified to the participants and shall be
at least the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as
stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) daily quotation sheet on the
date on which the options are deemed to be granted and
accepted in accordance with the terms of the Scheme (the
“Commencement Date”), which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the Commencement
Date; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at general
meeting or by the Board, the life of the Scheme commenced
from 21 May 2015, the date of adoption, and ended on 20
May 2025.

As at 31 December 2023, no share option was granted by the
Company under the 2015 Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were set out
below:

Long positions in the shares and underlying share of
the Company

Personal
Name of Director Capacity Interests
EEEB L) B AR
Yu Ben Ansheng Beneficial owner/Interest of 3,000,000
controlled corporation
MTE ERfE A/ REEEER
Note:

These shares are held by King Jade Holdings Limited, which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to
be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive or their respective associates had
any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
following persons or corporations, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long position in share and underlying share of the

Company

Name of shareholders Capacity

REREHE 37}

Singapore Zhongxin Investment Beneficial owner
Company Limited (ote 11 EnEEA

Li Juan (o2 Interest of spouse

ZSE ) [ p e

Qu Zhi Beneficial owner

fhE BHERA

King Jade Holdings Limited (et 3##3  Beneficial owner

BE=EBA
Notes:

1. Singapore Zhongxin Investment Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin. Accordingly, Mr. Lai is
deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

2. Ms. LiJuan, the spouse of Mr. Lai Guanglin, is also deemed to be
interested in Mr. Lai’s interest in the Company under the SFO.

3. King Jade Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Yu Ben Ansheng, an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be
interested in such shares under the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or corporations, other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$23,000.

SHARES ISSUED

The Company has not issued any share during the year ended 31
December 2023.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Company has not issued any debenture during the year ended
31 December 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group throughout the year.
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MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the disclosure of related party transactions set out in Note
30 to the financial statements, no Director or an entity connected
with Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance between any members of
the Group and the Company’s controlling shareholders subsisting
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1. From 1 January 2023 to 31 March 2023, the Group paid
consultancy fee to a company, Brothers Capital Limited
("BCL"), owned by Mr. Lai Guanglin (“Mr. Lai") for a fixed
sum of HK$373,000 per month as agreed by both parties
according to the consultancy services agreement dated 1
April 2022 for the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
2023. This is a continuing connected transaction which is
exempted under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. The total
amount of consultancy services fees paid by the Company
was HK$1,119,000 for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
March 2023.
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On 3 April 2023, the new Consultancy Services Agreement
(the “Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and BCL, pursuant to which the Company agreed to appoint
BCL for the provision of certain consultancy services. The
term of the Agreement shall be a period of one year from 3
April 2023 to 31 March 2024. The consultancy service fee
was paid 12 installments payable monthly in arrears. Mr.
Lai is the controlling shareholder of the Company. As BCL is
directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lai and he is the sole director,
BCL is an associate of Mr. Lai and therefore, is an associate
of the connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.13(3) of the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Agreement,
BCL shall provide the Company with consultancy services
in connection with its investment and corporate strategy.
The total amount of consultancy services fees paid by the
Company was HK$3,357,000 for the period from 3 April
2023 to 31 December 2023. This amount does not exceed
the cap amount of HK$3,357,000 for the period from 3 April
2023 to 31 December 2023 as shown in the announcement
of the Company dated 3 April 2023.

As mentioned in the announcement dated 11 May 2016
and the circular dated 15 July 2016 of the Company, on 11
May 2016, Mao Xing Limited (now known as Softpower
(China) Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Lender”), entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with China Victory International Holdings
Limited, (“CVIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria
Corporation, pursuant to which the Lender has conditionally
agreed to grant to CVIL a loan facility in the amount
of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,746,000) upon and subject to the terms and
conditions set out therein.

As at the date of the Loan Agreement, Mr. Lai Guanglin,
the former director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company (Mr. Lai resigned as director on 30 March
2018) and was also the controlling shareholder of Agria
Corporation. As such, CVIL is therefore a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The loan carried interest at 10.5% per annum and is
repayable by 31 July 2019. The loan was secured by the
entire issued shares of CVIL executed by Agria Group Limited
("AGL"), the immediate holding company of CVIL, and also
guaranteed by a deed of corporate guarantee executed by
Agria Corporation in favour of the Group.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting
on 23 February 2018, the Group agreed to novate and
AGL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Agria Corporation and
the immediate holding company of CVIL, agreed to assume
the Group’s loan to CVIL of US$10,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$78,357,000) with all other terms and conditions
remained unchanged.

On 9 May 2019, the Group entered into a loan agreement
(“2019 Loan Agreement”) with AGL to renew the loan and
the proposed annual caps from 1 August 2020 to 31 July
2022.

Under the 2019 Loan Agreement, the clause of the share
mortgage executed by AGL, being the sole shareholder of
CVIL, over the entire issued shares of CVIL in favour of the
Group has been removed. Save as the above amendments, all
other terms of the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged
and continue in full force and effect.

On 21 July 2020, the Group and AGL agreed to enter into
a supplemental loan agreement (“2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement”) to adjust downward the interest rate for each
of the interest period from ten point five per cent (10.5%) of
the Loan per annum to five point five per cent (5.5%) of the
Loan per annum.

The Loan is also secured by a share charge to be executed
by the Borrower in favour of the Lender as a continuing
security and continuing obligation for performance by the
Borrower of its obligations in the 2019 Loan Agreement (as
amended or supplemented by the 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement). Pursuant to the share charge, the Borrower will
charge 20% of its share interests in Agria Asia Investments
Limited (“AAIL") to the Lender. AAIL is a company with
limited liability incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
is wholly-owned by the Borrower. AAIL is indirectly holding a
share equity investment in an agricultural enterprise in New
Zealand through Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd, the only and
wholly-owned direct subsidiary of AAIL.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

ZEFTAFB105%:HE - AR -Z
—NELA=+—BZHEER - %&
FECVILK EEZER A RlAgria Group
Limited (TAGL) {TfECVILE) 2 #BE 1T
BEAD YEHE 1R K2 Agria Corporation$i 174
REEERBIERITL ©

BER-_E-N\F-_A-+=B£1TH
REFRAE LBARRHRE - AEE
[EZAGL(Agria Corporationfy 2 &l &
DRI RCVILWE B R A ) AERE
EmCVILFE 310,000,000 7t (1855
578,357,000 7T) - E MR AEHE
R o

RZZE-NFRANR - REBEAGL
SN ERipE ([20198 &) - K
BHMERIEBFELR AT %
ENRA—BE-_E-_—F+A=+—H
1F o

RIF2019E %% UAEB AR T
A ' BAGL(ACVILEYME—IEER) FLCVIL
R 2 BB BT RS AR (D IR 1R A e
REVIESRE MIBR o Br_EAUEETHN - 2019
BRI A MR s T R 4
BEE+RBORIER -

N-ZE-_FE+A-+—08 KEFH
AGLRIEFT M — AR ER i (12020
HWREFRBZEDBSHEMNANEHRE
RZEFEME+TEAEN0.5%)THAZE
B EBFARABAIEG.5%)

BERITAERANERALZEZALZT
FEIWROPRRIERE - MEAERA
1720198 5 i (K 2020%H 75 & 5K 1#
EATERI ST NERE 2 HEER
RIFEET - BEBEROEFL - ERALD
FHRE R Agria Asia Investments Limited
(TAAILD) B920% IRBE T ERA ° AAIL
R—ERNEBHBARESEMKINE
RARIRBERAZERE © AAILER
Agria (Singapore) Pte. Ltd (ZAAAILH)RE
—FEEEENBAR BEEE-HE
FPERER R ZRERE -



Save and except for the revision on the original interest rate
and the share charge by AGL, all other terms as set out in
the 2019 Loan Agreement remain unchanged.

Pursuant to a resolution passed in a special general meeting
on 12 August 2020, 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement
was approved.

The annual caps of the maximum principal loan outstanding
for the years ended 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020,
31 December 2021 and period ended 31 July 2022 were
US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,500,000) for each
year/period.

The annual caps of the interest amounts for the period from
1 January 2020 to 11 August 2020, period from 12 August
2020 (assumed the effective date of 2020 Supplemental
Loan Agreement) to 31 December 2020, year ended 31
December 2021 and period ended 31 July 2022 were
Us$645,000, US$214,000, US$550,000 and US$320,000
respectively (“Annual Caps”). The 2020 Supplemental Loan
Agreement, Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding
and interest amounts were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Company’s special general meeting on
12 August 2020.

As the loan and the annual caps of the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction will expire on 31 July 2022, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement dated 22 April 2022
(“2022 Loan Agreement”) with the AGL to renew the loan
and the proposed annual caps from 1 August 2022 to 31
July 2025. All terms as set out in the 2022 Loan Agreement
remain the same as 2020 Supplemental Loan Agreement.

The new annual caps of the interest amounts for the financial
period from 1 August 2022 (assumed the effective date of
2022 Loan Agreement) to 31 December 2022, year ended 31
December 2023, year ending 31 December 2024 and period
from 1 January 2025 to 31 July 2025 were US$231,000,
US$550,000, US$552,000 and US$320,000 respectively
(“New Annual Caps”). The 2022 Loan Agreement, New
Annual Caps of the principal loan outstanding and interest
amounts were approved by the shareholders of the Company
at the Company’s.special general meeting on 8 July 2022.
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Report of the Directors
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the interest income
from AGL amounted to approximately US$550,000,
(equivalent to HK$4,324,000) (2022: US$550,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,324,000)).

As at 31 December 2023, the loan to AGL amounted
to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$78,436,000)
(31 December 2022: US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,278,000)).

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that (i) the entering into of the Loan Agreement,
although it is not conducted in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, it is in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole; and (ii) the terms
of the loan agreement and the Annual Caps are on normal
commercial terms and are fair and reasonable.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the above mentioned
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the following connected transaction
during the year:

On 8 December 2022, Bun Kee (International) Limited (“Bun
Kee"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as lender entered into the loan agreement with Mr. Lai Fulin
(executive director and the chairman of the Company), as
borrower, pursuant to which Bun Kee agreed to, among other
things, provide to a secured loan of HK$5,000,000 to Mr. Lai Fulin
for a fixed term 3 years from the date of drawdown and interest
payable was calculated at 6% per annum. The interest shall be
paid quarterly in arrears with the first interest repayment date on
31 March 2023. The loan was fully repaid on 19 April 2023.

The loan was secured by personal guarantee from the controlling
shareholder of the Company, Mr. Lai Guanglin, the elder brother
of Mr. Lai Fulin.

Save as disclosed above and in Note 30 to the financial
statements, during the year, there were no connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders” approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:
Purchases

—  the largest supplier 21.4%

—  five largest suppliers combined 63.5%

Sales

—  thelargest customer 5.0%

- five largest customers combined 19.1%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.
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Report of the Directors
EH O

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of the compliance with corporate governance code of
the Company are set out in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT” of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Yee Shuen, Wilson, Mr. Chen Wei
Wen, Mr. Guan Zhigiang and Mr. Wang Chaolong.

By reference to "A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and
adopted by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of
the Company.
SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float required under the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Lai Fulin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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To the Shareholders of China Pipe Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Pipe Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 121 to 215, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
3 7 A B Bl e o

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Net realisable value of inventories

e Impairment of loan to a related company
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, inventories of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$217.3
million. As described in the accounting
policies in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, inventories are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in
determining the approprlate provisions
for slow moving, obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below
cost. Net realisable value is determined with
reference to the aging and marketability of
inventories on a product-by-product basis,
and with reference to their latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. An
impairment provision of approximately
HK$14.0 million has been recorded to reduce
the carrying value of certain inventories to
their estimated net realisable value.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balances and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
net realisable value of the inventories.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET N EERRETSIE

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of inventories included:

Understood and evaluated the appropriateness and consistency
of the basis management used in estimating the level of
provision for inventories, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors such
as complexity, subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment of inventory
provision to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventory aging
used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
slow moving and obsolete inventories.

Performed analytics on inventory holding and movement
data to identify products with indication of slow moving or
obsolescence.

Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of inventories
to their net realisable value by checking to their selling price
subsequent to the year end. Where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging, sales
orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to assessment on net realisable value of
inventories to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET N EERRET SR
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Impairment of loan to a related company
Refer to notes 4, 19 and 30(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held a
loan to a related company of approximately
HK$78.3 million net of the provision of
approximately HK$0.1 million.

Management applied judgement in
determining the appropnate loss allowance
for impairment of loan to the related
company. The loan is secured by corporate
guarantee by the holding company of
the borrower (the “Guarantor”) and a
20% share charge over a subsidiary of
the borrower. The loan is interest bearing
and repayable by July 2025 as detailed in
note 30(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assessed the financial
conditions of the related company and
the Guarantor, taking into account the
settlement history of the related interest
elements, and a provision of HK$0.1 million
is made for this loan as at 31 December
2023.

We focused on this area due to the size
of the balance and the higher degree of
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity in
management’s judgment in determining the
recoverable amount of the loan.
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CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
on the loan receivable included:

Understood and evaluated management assessment on
impairment of loan to a related company, and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud.

Checked to management’s approval, loan agreement and
obtained direct confirmation from the related company on the
balance and terms of the loan as at 31 December 2023 with no
exception.

Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of interest payment
received and whether they are in accordance with the terms of
the loan agreement.

Challenged management as to the recoverability of the loan,
corroborating explanations with the latest financial information
of the related company and the Guarantor and value of
secured assets.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of
management in relation to the impairment assessment on loan to
the related company to be supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
38 7 A% Rl

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
3 7 A B Bl e o

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Hiu Tung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains, net

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Provision for impairment of financial
assets

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Finance income, net

Profit before income tax
Tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted

WA
HERAR

EH

H Aty e H 58

$HE K AR
—REITHER
TREERBERRE

il

LUEL N
MR

LR OANE

T8 A )
BIA

RRArHEERE AR
EESEvE

SREF
EA R

The above consolidated income statement should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Consolidated Income Statement

Note
k3

N

N N

10

11

e R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=#+-A=+—HIL=FE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
714,129 636,535
(519,478) (461,678)
194,651 174,857
1,195 4,064
(23,961) (19,710)
(109,228) (101,367)
(52) 61)
62,605 57,783
12,979 6,384
(6,740) (5,925)
6,239 459
68,844 58,242
(10,454) (9,024)
58,390 49,218
HK cents HK cents
Bl JENL
4.38 3.69

BX

Yoo 2 P R BE Y P 5 — GBI A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

u‘/'ﬁ ] ﬂifﬁq&ﬁn%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=—F+-A=+—HL=FE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Actuarial (loss)/gain on post-

employment benefit obligations,

net of tax
Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Currency translation differences

Other comprehensive loss for
the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax attributable
to equity holders of the Company

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED

Note
k3

REE i A

Hih 2 EUEs:

EEETEEF LR 5T
SLEIRZIEA:
%%éhﬂﬁ%m#“

(E518) /Wizs - 0kFiIER
24

H & A E R AT m Fl 2k
EEZIEA:

Bk =

REGHEMEBEER -
R IAE

ARREEmE ARG
FEBRRZ MW EATE

i

EXEEERLT

1

o)

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
58,390 49,218
(133) 173

(147) (824)

(280) (651)
58,110 48,567

2

0 Wi 2 7 B B Y B & — 1 B9



ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Loan to a related company
Loan to a director

Rental deposits and other assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Restricted bank balances

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Equity holders

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The above consolidated.statement of financial position should be

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LA BN DL R

As at 31 December 2023

aE

FRBEE

E NI

FREEE

mYAE
ERT—EEER

,\/TV\% iz $

HERE MNEME

REBEE
pex
B 5 RUGRIA

Be  BNSRREMD

}EJ‘B—(/TA

B EBEFARE

ZEREE
QL EEA
EHEMRITER
SR BIRTTAE
B RIRITHES

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Note
Kt

13
14
15
19
19
19

18
19

19
20
21

22
22

23
24

o

i

RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
11,261 5,093
72,787 91,998
273 324
78,312 78,154
- 5,000

7,157 7,369
169,790 187,938
217,326 243,703
187,334 151,481
98,578 64,500
1,541 1,513
316 750
46,000 46,000
1,106 -
228,138 206,487
780,339 714,434
950,129 902,372
26,645 26,645
703,136 645,026
729,781 671,671

Lt R A B IR 0 3R R S B Y B AT — G B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR LR S INY

As at 31 December 2023
R-ZB-_=F+=-A=+—H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables, other payables
and contract liabilities

Taxation payable

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

&

FRBEE
HERRE
EREHARE
HiIERBAE

RBRE

BRRENFOR - Hit
ENFIERERAE

FEfTEIR

HERE

=1

REERRBDAER

The financial statements on pages 121 to 127 were approved by
the board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and were signed on its

behalf:

Lai Fulin 38188

Director %

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A

Note
Kt

14
26

27

14
25

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
56,794 78,124
2,859 2,117
554 542
60,207 80,783
68,098 73,634
4,357 26
25,518 22,905
62,168 53,353
160,141 149,918
220,348 230,701
950,129 902,372
620,198 564,516
789,988 752,454

FINNEZNTANPBHRREAEFEN_F

U9
s

WE=ZA -+ B#tZz TREEEFSH
5

Yu Ben Ansheng BI %4

Director %

& B B AR 0 2% 1B ER B PR P 5 — OF B



At 1 January 2022 \“E-~F-f-A
Profit or the year REREH
Other comprehensive income: Eh2EAE

Actuaria gain on post- employment

benefit obligations, netof tax b
Currency trangltion diferences ShpEsE

Totel comprehensive income for the year - A% 2ENGEE

At 31 December 2022 e g o

The above consolidated:statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

RERENERORRAE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o W i S B

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-_=F+-A=+—RHLHFE

Attrbutable to equity holders of the Company
RATEEREARETD

Share Share Capfta Meger — Statutory Ot Bxchange  Retained
capial - premium fesene Tesenve fesenve fesenve fesene eamings Total
BE  BOEE  BREG  oOBR  EER EbRE  EXBR  REMN i
HSO0 M50 HSO00 SO0 MO0 AKSUD SO0 HKSORD RSO
T T 7T TEr T T TET AL T
26,645 126,552 34115 3,700 u JRE! 118 48716 623,104
- - - - - - - 49218 4918
- - - - - 1 - - 3
] - . - - - 824 - 8
- - - - - 13 (824) 9218 48,567
26,645 126,552 34,115 3,700 u 2407 4 Amss eTgT
F AR S R B B 5% e B B Y B 5 — OF B
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B HE AR S B A

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HL=FE

At 1 January 2003 \“3-Z£-5-R
Profit or the year REREH
Other comprehensive income: Eh2EAE
Actuarialloss on post-employment - BEAEFIRENRESE
benefit obligations, netof tax b
Currency trangltion diferences ShpEEE

Totel comprehensive income for the year A% 2ENGEE

At 31 December 2023 o 2 g o

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED " EIE ¥ 5B HR 2 d

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAEREREAREDS
Share Share Capital Merger ~ Statutory Other  Exchange  Retained

capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve - eamings Total
RE  REGEE B4R ABBR  iRBR  BEEE  ERE  REEA a%
HESO00 HKSUBD  HKSUDD  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOD
Vi1 i T&r Fén V9 i T&r Vi1 iy
26,645 126,552 34,115 3,700 u 2407 % 477,934 671,67
- - - - - - - 58,390 58,390
- - - = - (133) = - (133)
- - - - - - (147) - (147)

- - - - - (133) (147) 58,390 58,10
26,645 126,552 34,115 3,700 u 2274 147 536,324 129,781

4

|t 4R R mn B B 2k E B B A BT A — OF B



Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loan to a director

Repayment of loan from a director

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Addition of pledged bank deposits

Redemption of pledged certificate of
deposit

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBESmEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE-_Z-_=#+-A=+—HIL=FE

Note
k3

REEPHHERE

KEEBEE RS 29
BEAFE

B H B

B ATSH

REERPELRDFR

REFBZRERE

BAYE - BEN&E

13
HEWE  BERREZ
FR8 578 29
BERT—NES 30(e)
EREEEN 30(e)
BARBETABEZ SR
BEZBRBIWA

RERSTARSFER
BMEFH RERE

RAEE

BEEE

G BRI T K

EERERENERE

A B A E R

MEERBFARSFRE

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R & & I8 & Z B Y8 INFEE

Exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

PR
FOZRERBELEFEY
22

FRZBESRBESEEY

@
o)

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
40,385 87,523
(6,647) (5,844)
11,689 5,548
(4,920) (16,825)
40,507 70,402
(8,199) (5,099)
11 -

- (5,000)

5,000 -

78 65
(3,110) (10,034)
451,345 387,260
(442,530) (389,926)
- (10,000)

- 10,000
(23,185) (22,075)
(14,370) (24,741)
23,027 35,627
(270) (1,224)
206,487 172,084
229,244 206,487

B P8 3R FE BLRE M Y R — 550

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # #f

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B S 5 A i

General information

China Pipe Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Victoria Place,
5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards for its annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2023:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting

Estimates
HKFRS 17 and Insurance Contracts
Amendments to
HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

2. Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting period
and have not been early adopted by the group. These
amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants'
Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback’

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
(Amendments) Arrangements'

HK Int 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause!

HKAS 21 (Amendments)  Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

1 effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024

2 effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025

3 effective date to be determined

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit and counterparty risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s financial risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance by actively managing
debt level and cash flow in order to maintain a strong
financial position and minimising refinancing and
liquidity risks by attaining healthy debt repayment
capacity, appropriate maturity profile and availability of
banking facilities.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in Hong Kong
and in Macau with minor operations in the
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the
United States dollars (“USD"), Macau Pataca
("MOP”) and Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities, which are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency
of the group entities. In order to mitigate
the foreign currency risk, the Group has
been closely monitoring its foreign currency
exposure and requirements and will arrange
for any hedging facilities if necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged against USD and MOP is
pegged against HK$, the Group is exposed
to limited exchange rate fluctuation. As a
result, the exchange rate risk exposure in
respect of USD and MOP are not significant.
While for RMB, the exchange rate fluctuation
is relatively volatile. At 31 December 2023,
if RMB had strengthened/weakened by
5% (2022: 5%) against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit would
have been HK$103,000 (2022: HK$62,000)
higher/lower respectively mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of RMB-denominated financial assets and
liabilities.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Group's interest-
bearing assets mainly include loan to a
related company, loan to a director and bank
balances and deposits, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 19, 21, 22 and 30.
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is also attributable to its borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in Note
25. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. As at 31
December 2023, approximately 36% (2022:
46%) of the Group's borrowings were carried
at floating rates and expose the Group to
cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure against cash flow interest-rate risks.

As at 31 December 2023, if interest rate
has increased/decreased by 100 (2022:
100) basis points with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been
HK$185,000 (2022: HK$203,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of increase/decrease
in interest expense on borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk

(@)

Risk management

Credit risk mainly arises from bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, trade and other
receivables, other deposits, loan to a related
company and loan to a director. The carrying
amounts of these balances substantially
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit and counterparty risk in relation to
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 all the
bank deposits are deposited in high quality
financial institutions without significant credit
risk. The credit risk on bank deposits is limited
because 60% (2022: 55%) of the Group's
bank balances are placed with subsidiaries of
state-owned banks and the rest are placed
with other reputable financial institutions.
Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance of these banks.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue trade and other
receivables.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(@)

Risk management (Continued)

Rental deposits made to landlords are also
considered to be of low risk. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Other than the loan to a related
company as mentioned below, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

In respect of the loan to a related company,
as detailed in Note 30(d), the Group obtained
share charge executed by the borrower and
guarantees executed by the guarantor in
favour of the Group as a continuing security
and continuing obligation for performance
by the borrower of its obligations to minimise
the credit risk.

3.

B B R W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped with
similar risk characteristics and, collectively or
individually, assessing them for likelihood of
recovery.

For trade receivables relating to accounts in
which there are objective evidence that the
debtor faces significant financial difficulties
or enter liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. There
was specific loss allowance of HK$113,000
was made as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
HK$61,000).

The Group categorises its trade receivables,
except those individually assessed, based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles of sales over
a period of 12 months before 31 December
2023 and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

3.

B SR b B (@)
3.1 BIEABEE @)
(b) EERXELERGE)

(ii)

AT
B SRR

AEBERBEEV R
HERBOTE LI EF
BRMEEEE R
BEESRUMKRERTFE
HR e FEREIR A -

FREEMEEEE B
5 REUGRIA S AR
BRSO ME - WHFK
18 751 ¥ 4 @ 4 9 7 B
1 o

MEBENE ZEKRK
H HRAEREEER
BA &5 A MR E KB
HRE S EITEERNE

- GHERF P S
MmiERERE - HE—
T-=F+=-RA=+—
A& SR TEEEREE
113,000 L (ZF ==
F 1 61,000/87T) °

AEEREAREER
BB MBTERHAY
B 5 UG IR (18 5IRF S
BRIN EITHE - A
BEARER_ZT_=F
TZ-A=+—HAM12
18 A A 5 & A0 15 3R
LA B ikt B A R 9 4R
BEEEERE - BE
BAKRAETHE U
f BR %2 AT A0 AT IE 14 B
LEBRBERAREE 8
BEP /BRI FRRE

HIFE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The expected credit loss rate for the
remaining trade receivables is determined as
follow:

As at 31 December R-B=-=fF

2023 t=A=+-H
Collective assessment C R
Within credit period SEHA
1 to 30 days TRZE30KR
31 to 90 days 31REIOKR
Over 90 days HiE90K

B B R W

3. UBERERE@®
3.1 BBEREE@E)
(b) FERXZHEEE)

(i) TEEEREGE)
B S EWGRIE (E)
TR B 5 BB GRIERTE
HEEBBEXETW
™
Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying  expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount
2 HifaH 2 HIFEH
FEBEX REAE FEBHSE IREFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FET FET FET
0.12 111,799 (135) 111,664
0.12 41,587 (50) 41,537
0.17 - 0.36 29,884 (73) 29,811
0.88 - 32.79 5,266 (944) 4,322
188,536 (1,202) 187,334
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The expected credit loss rate for the
remaining trade receivables is determined as

follow (Continued):

As at 31 December
2022

Collective assessment
Within credit period

1 to 30 days

31 to 90 days

Over 90 days

R
EEA
TRE30K
31RE0K
HiBI0K

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A

3. MBEREE@
3.1 BiBEEEZE#

(b) EEREXESEE )
(i) EEERE (B

2 5 FEWGRIE (48)

RIRE 5 RIKAENTE
HEEBRREEN T

#®) -

Lifetime Gross Lifetime Net
expected carrying expected carrying
loss rate amount credit loss amount

2 HATE A 2 HRTE R
EEEBX IRERE EEE1B REFE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Bt FET FET FErT
0.15 106,502 (162) 106,340
0.15 23,516 (36) 23,480
0.27-0.58 15,244 (53) 15,191
1.29-19.31 7,421 (951) 6,470
152,683 (1,202) 151,481




3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the
probability of default upon initial recognition
of asset and whether there has been
significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
company’s ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the company;

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the
company, including changes in the
payment status of the counterparty.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment/repayable demanded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

The loss allowance for other financial
assets at amortised cost as at 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$154,000 (2022:
HK$154,000) as detailed in Note 19.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash and availability of
funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. Management maintains rolling
forecast of the Group’s liquidity reserves which
comprises undrawn banking facilities and cash and
cash equivalents, on the basis of expected cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of financial
reporting to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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3.

At 31 December 2023

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Interest payment on
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Interest payment on
lease liabilities

At 31 December 2022

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Interest payment on
borrowings

Lease liabilities

Interest payment on
lease liabilities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

E
=
i
_1_
ﬁ

RN-T—-—F
+=-A=+—81
B 5 REAMEMNRIE

f&E

HEREZMEXM

SR B R AR

3. MKERRERE®@

3.1 BIBEABEE@E
(0 nEEZEE (&)
Less than Between Over

1year 1tob5 years 5 years Total
—E£0R —ERFZH RENE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
39,939 = 39,939
62,168 - 62,168
985 - 985
25,518 56,794 82,312
2,879 3,441 6,320
46,257 = 46,257
53,353 = 53,353
733 733
22,905 78,124 101,029
3,468 5,731 9,199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3.

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by
total equity.

The Group's strategy was to maintain a solid capital
base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term. Given its existing principal
business, management considers a gearing ratio as
measured by total bank borrowings to total equity of
not more than 50% as solid and reasonable. The table
below analyses the Group’s capital structure at 31
December 2023 and 2022 as follows:

Total borrowings BIEE
Total equity L e

Gearing ratio BEAGLEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying value of trade receivables, other loans
and receivables, bank balances and deposits, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are a
reasonable approximation of their fair values. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy
as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2)

—  inputs for the asset and liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3. MKRREE®
3.3 AREEMLE &)

Fair value Fair value
as at asat
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Fair value R=B==% i —
Hierarchy +=A=1+-H +-A=+—-H
AnEEER MARERE HAnEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE Level 2
— Investment funds -REES St 1,541 1,513

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
It includes quoted market price or dealer quotes for
similar instruments. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities of
the Group are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Provision for impairment of loan to a related
company, loan to a director and trade and
other receivables

The policy for provision for impairment of loan to a
related company, loan to a director and trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
risk of default and expected credit losses which involved
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the Group's past collection history
of receivables, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. If the financial conditions of any individual
counterparty were determined to be deteriorated,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

Provision for impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
marketability of inventory items at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale. The management estimates the
net realisable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o B S 5 A i

Revenue and segment information

The Executive Directors of the Company have been
identified as the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").
Management determines the operating segments based on
the Group's internal reports, which are then submitted to the
CODM for performance assessment and resources allocation.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segment based on a measure of profit before
income tax and regard there to be only one operating
segment — trading of construction materials, mainly pipes
and fittings. Accordingly, segment disclosures are not
presented.

The revenue from contracts with customers recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
trading of construction materials, mainly pipes and fittings,
all of which were recognised at a point in time.

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(i) Sale of goods — wholesale

The Group sells a range of pipes and fittings. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customers, the customer has full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.

Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped
to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate provision for returns.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Accounting policies of revenue recognition
(Continued)

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale (Continued)

A receivable is recognised when the products
are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

Deposits collected from the customers before product
delivery are recognised as contract liabilities.

(i) Sale of goods - retail

The Group operates a chain of retail stores selling pipes
and fittings products. Revenue from the sale of goods
is recognised when a group entity sells a product to
the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately when the customer purchases the product
and takes delivery in store.

Geographical information

The Group is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group’s revenues
from external customers by geographical location are
detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Macau P
Mainland China B A i,

5.

B B R W

WAR 2 EER @)
WA FERR 2 & 5T BUR ()

() #HEFm - #HE G

EEMXNEER SRR - i
RERRERERTNKREL
MAREI 2 TR T BB — B
el

EEMRXMNZH - {EPWEHZ
ERHERRERAE -

(i) #HERm-FE
AEEEREHRTEL  HEED
LEMHER - HEBMHKATS
EEBEERATPHEEmEHE
R RHERNINEERTFPEE
EmIEEAR RIS -

HESEHPER
REEFZRER - AEBIRME D EH
REINEEE P B AT
Revenue
ON

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
637,052 565,702
70,894 63,816
6,183 7,017
714,129 636,535
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

5. WARZHER @)
&S EE R ()
ANEBIRIE S MR EEMT

5. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location are

148

detailed below:

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Hong Kong BE 168,445 186,186
Macau JRFT 257 548
Mainland China AR B A 1,088 1,204
169,790 187,938

Liabilities related to contracts with customers HEFAREHANER

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to

contracts with customers:

AEBCHERATREFAREGHANA

& e

2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Contract liabilities ARAE - AR (HIFE27)
— receipts in advance (Note 27) 17,798 20,728

Contract liabilities for sales of goods contracts have
decreased by HK$2,930,000 due to the net effect of addition

and utilisation of contract liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information (Continued) 5.

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

(Continued)

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was
included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year

Other gains, net

Net exchange gain
Gain on early termination of lease
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Gain/(loss) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
Impairment loss on other assets
Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Hong Kong Government grants (note)

Note:

FHNE R B EREE
BERERSBA

6.

BEE 5 W2t 73 2R
PEATAR ERR#) 2 ek
HEWE - BELEEZ
Wik, (E518) 58
BARBEFABRRZEH
BEZ W/ (B18)
HiEERERE
BAfBEFABR ISR
BEZBEWA
BBBUFT ) (M)

During the year, the Group has not received the Anti-epidemic
Fund under Employment Support Scheme of Hong Kong Special
Administration Region Government to set off against wages, salaries

and welfare (2022: HK$3,266,000).

B B S B R M
WAR D EBER @)
HEFERAENAEE®@

TRER T EARHRE HERERONRAS
Bz LEEEARAGBER

2023 2022
—EBE-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
8,399 21,350
Hin =558
2023 2022
—E_=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FETT
1,567 978
10 38
1 (90)
28 (193)
(499) -
78 65
- 3,266
1,195 4,064

s

FR - ANEEESHWEREBERITTE BT
REEFETHHEREES + UEKET
& HeREMN(ZZE - : 3,266,000/
JL) °
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Expenses by nature

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold (Note 18)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15)
Auditor’s remuneration:
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 13)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 14)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)
Short-term and low-value lease expenses
(Note 14)
Provision for impairment of financial assets
(Reversal of)/provision for and write-off of
inventories, net
Other expenses

Representing:

Cost of sales

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses
Provision for impairment of financial assets

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

7. BAXME
SRR TR TFEERESR ¢
2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET F#T
EHEZTFERA (H3E18) 512,443 449,904
ER A ER#H (FIEE15) 51 51
ZERETE &
- BERS 1,390 1,313
- EEZ AR 205 192
M - B MR
e (fE13) 2,029 1,667
FREEENE MiiE14) 23,689 23,798
1B B & FF s (F:Es) 75,872 65,671
HEREEEHEER
(FFzE14) 453 1,477
TREERRERE 52 61
78 (E15) /B R F
e (3,519) 3,173
Efhh 40,054 35,509
652,719 582,816
RE
SHERA 519,478 461,678
HE R DK 23,961 19,710
—MRITIE R 109,228 101,367
TREERRERE 52 61
652,719 582,816




8.

Employee benefit expenses

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

(a) Five highest paid individuals

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

8. BERAMX

TE& - HekEMEF
RIREA - EBREHETE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2022:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 32. The emoluments paid to
the remaining three (2022: three) individuals were as

follows:

Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits

Discretionary bonus

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

e hEMEHREREN

BIBTEAT
BARSKRA - EBEHEFETE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
73,632 63,448
2,240 2,223
75,872 65,671

(a) EfuEEHFHAL

RER - REBRAUSSHEATE
B (CEZF  Z)EE
HEFL O E2H 0T R 2
NFPHB=A(CBZ—F : =)
ALZB&mT

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
5,200 4,982
1,698 1,629

54 54

6,952 6,665
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B 3 BT R
8. Employee benefit expenses (Continued) 8. EERFBMZ@®
(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (a) EuEESHAL @
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals R (CEZZF  ZRA)RAFA
fell within the following bands: T2 EHMWN T THNEE
2023 2022
—E-=F T
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,0017%7T — 1,500,000/ 7T - =
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,00177C—2,000,000/8 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
(b) Senior management remuneration by band (b) EAREEAELTN ZEE
The remuneration of senior management fell within the SMEBABZHFMNF 5 &
following bands: 3
2023 2022
—E-= —ET-—fF
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T - 1,500,000/ 7T =
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T - 2,000,000/ 7T 4 3
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T - 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
5 5
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Finance income, net

Bank interest income

Other interest income

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(Note 14)

Tax expense

Current taxation:
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas tax
Under/(over) provision in prior years

Total current tax
Deferred taxation (Note 26):
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

Tax expense

B B R W

9. BMBWAFHE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E - F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
RITHBUA 8,566 2,041
EF B A 4,413 4,343
RITEEZFBXH (3,180) (1,882)
HEaGE2MELH (14
(3,560) (4,043)
6,239 459
10. HIEZH
2023 2022
—EC-=F T &
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
BNEARLTE -
BEBFEH 9,610 8,578
BN TE - 75
AR FE DIRI(Z1R) 76 (49)
BIHEATR B 4B K8 9,686 8,604
EFEFIA (FisE26) -
Ry FERE 2 A K (O]
768 420
FRIES N 10,454 9,024

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates.

BT ST AT WA ER R R R
&16.5% (ZT -4 : 16.5%):1IE o
YEINRIE TR I G 2 (G 5T FE AR R v A
BRASECEEBBAR ZIBITHRES

H o
ZAr

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 # #f

153



154

10. Tax expense (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

10.

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong

Kong profits tax rate as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax calculated at a rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%)

Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdictions

Unrecognised tax losses

Tax effect of income not subject to
taxation

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for taxation purposes

Effect of two-tiered profit tax rate
regime (note)

Under/(over) provision in prior years

Tax expense

Note:

T A 7

B E16.5% (B —4F -

16.5%) 5tE 2 Fi1A
E b B AR 7 BN E F R
ZRE
RIERBIBEE
AR 2 i 2 BiTa s &
RIS R AR I 2 22 ()
NEFE LR (Z5R)

BIAX

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime in Hong Kong, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporations (only one entity is
allowed within the Group) will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of corporations not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to

be taxed at 16.5%.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

BIAT H (&)

AEBBBBANGN 2 A hEBERE
REBBNEHEMAEZERTEL

EREIT ¢
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
68,844 58,242
11,359 9,610
(108) 71
301 170
(1,235) (786)
226 173
(165) (165)
76 (49)
10,454 9,024
BiE -

REBBFESHMAH  GERCEERRA
RAFF—EE8) 852,000,000/ T3 F#
1£8.25% WA EEF - MR 12,000,000/ 7T
2 FE1216.5% M REAF o ARG
T AR ] EAR A SR A B 1216.5%

BB -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
and weighted average number of ordinary shares with
adjustments where applicable as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company for the purpose of
basic earnings per share

Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic

earnings per share

Z I A 8k

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares
arising from the Company’s share options. Diluted earnings
per share is of the same amount as the basic earnings per
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022.

11.

AEEREARNZAAE
A ARG F

B B R W

sRER

TRINRAESRER R EERF TR
BFEARSFAEARGRNRE BT
BB ke I R (FF 25 T LASH

) :

AEEREARRNZ EBEN

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
58,390 49,218
Thousands Thousands
FiR FAE
1,332,266 1,332,266

FESREERTE  EHE TSR
B2 MREFIH R BUEL AR - URARFAT
EEEHBH 2 RITEBIREEESE
oo FREBFERFETRELRRTE
B WIhEREE T =8 _-F
T+ - A=+—HIFELEKRT
FREBEEEL B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& A AR B
12. Dividend 12. RE

At the Board meeting held on 26 March 2024, the Board did RZEZME=A -+ BRTNES

not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year egRlL EFETERRBHE_ZT

ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). ZEFF A=t HUEFEZREAR
B(CE_—F:#/)-

13. Property, plant and equipment 13. 1% - BEREE

Plant, Office

machinery furniture,

and  Leasehold fixtures and Office ~ Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fittings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total

k& iR #EEL
BERRE  MRKE  KERRE  ERR EESR e #e
SO0 HKSUMO HKSODD  HKSUMO HKSODD  HKSUMO HKSODD

156

74 747 74 72 787 7A1 2

Cost A

At 1 January 2023 W-E-=F-A-H 4308 9,039 17118 4 2904 18,120 36,218
Bxchange dffeences EizE = = @ = (1) (6) ()
Additions AE = 1439 550 - 6,125 85 8,199
Disposals e (248) ®31) (115) - (52) - (646)

At 31 December 2023 WZZ-=E+2f=1-R 4,080 10,247 221 49 8976 18,199 43762

Accumulated depreciation giffiE

At 1 January 203 N-E-=%-A-H 3810 6,248 1137 4 1945 17,936 31125
Bichange dfferences EiZE - = = = () 6 U}
Charge forthe year REENE 0 698 15 - 814 7 2009
Disposals il (248) 1) (115) - ) - (646)

At 31 December 2023 WZ2-=E+2f=1-R 3,786 6,715 131 49 2,706 18,008 32,501

Net book value FERE

At31 December 203 R-BZZE12A=1-B 29 3532 974 - 6210 191 11,261

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A




Cost

At 1 January 2022
Exchange differences
Addtions
Disposals

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2022
Exchange differences
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2022

Net hook value
At 31 December 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

A

N5 -F-f-H
EiEE

Vi

i
W-B-ZE-f=1-R
ZithE

W3- 2F-A-H
ERZE

KERNE

&
W-B-ZE+-R=1-R
FHFE
NE--F+-f=1-A

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

13. % - BERRE @

Depreciation was recorded in the following categories:

General and administrative expenses

Plant, Office
machinery furnture,
and leasehold ~frtures and Office ~ Computer Motor
equipment  improvements fitngs ~ equipment equipment vehicles Total
B HE LRGN
BEldE  NREE RERERE XER lsh g 8
S 000 5000 S 000 5000 300 S0 S0
i i i f#n Tér FEr Tér
10,649 16,565 2817 128 5430 17,89 53484
= = () = B ) (16)
315 314 686 - 3 JE] 5,09
(6,630) (10,670) (1,720 ) (3,204) - (2319
4328 9,039 1718 4 2904 18,120 36,218
10,260 16,434 1738 126 4928 17247 5,733
= = () = b ) (16)
186 438 122 1 04 695 1,667
(6,636) (10,624) (1,718 (1) (3,200) - (22.259)
3810 6,248 1137 4 1945 17936 31125
518 279 o41 - 959 184 509
FERUTOELS
2023 2022
—=== T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,029 1,667

—REITHRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

13. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 13. 1% - BERRE @

158

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Plant, machinery and equipment  3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years or the lease
period, if shorter

Office furniture, fixtures and 3-5 years
fittings

Office equipment 3-5 years

Computer equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gains, net’ in the consolidated income statement.

See Note 34.5 for the other accounting policies relevant to
property, plant and equipment.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

WME - BERRBIINE - HIREBEG
SHAME R ERRBERRICEKRAED
BETRHREESE  SEFAIERFS
LI

BB ~ Hees M ik 3E10%F

HEMERE S ok EHA
(ABK2#E)
WAERM - EER  3EF
B
AR 3E54F
BIGRAE 3%E54F
B 3454

BENFSEERTEREHESER
BEERBRTRT - RIEEE R

B o
=

MEEENFREESNEGTATED
18 - EAREEREHURZE AR EIE

&R A BB L BT S 3R SRR
BET - WA WaERB R
FRERRER ©

BABE - BFERREHEBOEM ST
BRAFZHMIFE34.5 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

14. Lease

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets
Buildings
Equipment

Total right-of-use assets

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

Total lease liabilities

At 1 January

Addition

Depreciation

Early termination of lease

At 31 December

EREEE
BF
&

[EREEERR

HERE
inE)
FRE

HERBERR

R—HA—H
NE

e

RATAR LA

R+=-—A=+—8

Additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$5,751,000 during the year ended 31 December

2023 (2022: HK$20,160,000).

14. fHE

(a) FEUBRRKRPEANTE

?é%ﬁ#ﬂﬁfﬂuTﬁﬁﬁh
R

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
R-ZEBE-=F MN-TE-—4F
+=A=+—8 +=—HR=+—8
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
71,377 90,213

1,410 1,785

72,787 91,998

25,518 22,905

56,794 78,124

82,312 101,029

2023 2022
—EC-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
91,998 96,480

5,751 20,160
(23,689) (23,798)
(1,273) (844)

72,787 91,998
FRAEEEREE TS _=F1+=

A=+—H 1% E1%&N5,751,000
B (ZZF =~ :20,160,000/5

o) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

14. Lease (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(o)

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to lease:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

(Note 7)
Buildings Bg¥
Equipment B

Interest expense on lease liabilities
(Note 9)

The total cash payment for lease amounted to
HK$27,198,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: HK$27,595,000).

Short-term and low-value
lease expense (Note 7)

(B3E7)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, retail
shops and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years but may have
extension options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain various
terms and conditions.

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A

REREEERER

14. HE ®)
(b) ZEWBRTIERANSHE

EREEENE (57

MEABZH S (FHE9)

M

(c)

FANERZINTEEEEZS

g
JH

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-—F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FETT
23,229 23,292
460 506
23,689 23,798
3,560 4,043

HE_Z-_=—F+-_A=+—H
IFEFBHEEZ RSB HE
£27,198,0008 L (==
27,595,000/ 7T) °

453 1,477

FAEENEEEFBRAEARS
&

AEEREZEARAE - 2E
EEREIESE -HO—KETEA
H1Z= 104 - MERTREARIR T > Pt
HHERE - HEKRIURERIEE
W& BB E S BN RIER A -




14.

15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Lease (Continued)
(d) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in
terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension
and termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

Intangible assets

Trademark [GEE

Opening net book amount HYIMEREHE
Amortisation for the year NEHEGH

Closing net book amount HRAEREFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, amortisation expense
of HK$51,000 (2022: HK$51,000) is included in “cost of
sales” (Note 7).

Subsidiaries

Details of principal subsidiaries which, in the Directors’
opinion, materially affect the results and/or net assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, are set out in Note 33.

14.

15.

16.

B B R W

HE®w
(d) BHERKILRERE

AEEWFOMEEERSEBEM
RIDRERE - BLRTNERBE S
EREERERMIREREEIEZESD
BRAL o REDD BT LR ERE
ERAKETRE - IFHBRAH
HATTEE -

BEEE

2023 2022

—E_=F —E-F
HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

324 375
(51) (51)

273 324

BE_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HIEHF
g iR ~51,0008 0 (ZE - —
& 1 51,000%70) BT ATSHER A (
7)o

B B 2 7]

EERRHAREZEZER/BIN_F
=+ A=t B FEERKE

TE 2 TEWBRR ZFBEENHE
33°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R

17. Financial instruments by category 17.

Financial assets included in BEEFETHERRERN
consolidated statement of SWMEE
financial position:

Financial assets at amortised cost DB EA AT ENSREE
Trade receivables, deposits and other B HRWIE - 11e REA

receivables FEU IR
Pledged bank deposits (Note 21) BRI FeE21)
Cash and bank balances (Note 22) R& RIRTTEEER (HI5E22)

Financial assets at fair value BARBEFTABRLZ
through profit or loss (Note 20) ®EEE(EE20)

Total R

Financial liabilities included in BEEEEUBEMRREKEN
consolidated statement of o= y=Li g
financial position:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost LSRR AT EN S RAE
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAMERFRIA
Borrowings (Note 25) &8 (fiiE25)

Lease liabilities (Note 14(a)) HEafE FiE14@a)

Total ke

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE X &£ B ER 2 7

BRERSINEMIA

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
369,558 303,967
46,000 46,000
229,244 206,487
1,541 1,513
646,343 557,967
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT
39,939 46,257
62,168 53,353
82,312 101,029
184,419 200,639




18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Inventories
Accounting policies of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

]

Merchandises P&

At 31 December 2023, the provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to approximately HK$13,971,000
(2022: HK$19,797,000).

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$512,443,000 (2022:
HK$449,904,000) (Note 7).

Trade and other receivables
Accounting policies of trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are
generally due for settlement within the credit period and
therefore are all classified as current.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and
other receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

18.

19.

B B R W

r&

FEZEFBER
FERKA R A #EFEME CRIEE
SRR o RANTHZINBEFIEEE - A2
RHERABEBRET A EERE
R AT ERXETE

2023 2022
—EC-=F o = ot =
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
217,326 243,703

RN-ZZBE-=F+-A=+—8 &/
ERE#)Z13,971,0008 T (Z ==
£ 119,797,000/ 7T) °

BERATHIINABEEXRNB N2 HFE
X A3E512,443,0008 T (ZE- =4 -
449,904,000/ 7T) (Bi7E7) °

B 5 R HMEWRIE

E5 REMEBERTIEZETBER

BHRKKIBRNBFEEBREPHE
EmmEKREFHIE - B HRKKIA—
REEEEHANEN  BAEHERRR
) o

B5 REMERFENSIZERRES
7 WRARBEER - AEEHAE
7 R EMEKEIR - BREERE R

S E - FEURA R SRR R
AHE -
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£ B R B
19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. EZ R HMEWFIE @)
2023 2022
—EC-=F T
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Trade receivables H 5 EGRIE 188,649 152,744
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii)) B E RS (FRE3.1(0)Gi) (1,315) (1,263)
187,334 151,481
Prepayments SCENE 1,823 2,537
Loan to a director (Note 30(e)) BT —EE (fEGE(e) - 5,000
Rental deposits HEZRe 6,510 6,170
Other receivables, deposits and other ~ HAERFIE « Ime REMEE
assets 97,432 63,192
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii)) R BRI (B EE3. 1 (b)) (30) (30)
105,735 76,869
Loan to a related company (Note 30(d)) BT —RIEE R F] (FizE(30(d) 78,436 78,278
Less: loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)(ii)) B e E RS (FEE3.1(0)Gi) (124) (124)
78,312 78,154
Total of trade and other receivables, o5 REMEWFIE - e Kk
deposits and prepayments SEE B 371,381 306,504
Less: included in non-current assets B BRREERSEES
Rental deposits and other assets HERe NEMWERE (7,157) (7,369)
Loan to a director (Note 30(e)) BT — LL%%(W&GO( )) - (5,000)
Loan to a related company f?ﬁﬁ"ﬁ fEiRgE
(Note 30(d)) (MFEEE0(d)) (78,312) (78,154)
Included in current assets BEERBEET 285,912 215,981
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19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. EZ R HMEWFIE @)
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables B S RWFHIE - HiEWFBERIZS 2
and deposits approximate their fair values. FRSHEARE QAR EEEE °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other AEEE S REMERFIAZREES5E
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: TSI EEHE
2023 2022
—E-=F B4
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
HK$ BTt 189,578 165,505
RMB ARM 1,294 2,505
usD ESH 171,373 133,505
MOP BPTH 9,136 4,989
371,381 306,504
The Group generally grants credit period of 60-90 days to its AEFB-—RETEBELREHEFIEBRE
customers for its trading of pipes and fittings operation. The FZEEHACOREIOK - B FRUGK
ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on the invoice HIREZRMZRETOT ¢
date is as follows:
2023 2022
—=== .-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30KIA 53,244 45,076
31 to 60 days 31XE60K 51,667 41,297
61 to 90 days 61 KXE90K 41,352 32,333
91 to 120 days 91 KE120K 22,528 13,574
Over 120 days HBi3120K 19,858 20,464
188,649 152,744
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B B R

19. Trade and other receivables (Continued) 19. EZ R HMEWFIE @)
The closing loss allowance for all trade receivables reconcile FTE & 5 EWGRIB R AR & 1R R i H1 ER
to the opening loss allowance are as follows: E R AR EIRNT -
HK$'000
T
Loss allowance as at 31 December 2022 R-ZEBZZF+-A=+—HaEERE (1,263)
Loss allowance for trade receivables B S EWGRIBR B 1R R E (52)

Loss allowance as at 31 December 2023 i

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables.

There was loss allowance of HK$1,315,000 for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,263,000).

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk and credit risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned above.
Save as disclosed above, the Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

20. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either

through OCI or through profit or loss), and

—  those to be measured at amortised cost.
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—=FT-A=t—HOEERE

20.

(1,315)

AEBERABEMBEREERF NG
ETEFTBFEREEER  RIAEES
FEY RN B EFE A TR R R
1% o]

RZEBE-_=F+-_A=+—H8 B5E
W SR T R 5 1B & 1,315,000/8 7T ©

(ZZE =% :1,263,000/7T) °
AREE S EWFRIE R E &A% B G
HNE BB K 12 B R B A & R SR I 5
310

RifE BRZRAEERR A LS E
FEYKIA 2 DA (B - B EXXFiEESD -
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20. Financial assets at fair value through profit

21.

22,

or loss (Continued)

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

The classification depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash flows.

B B R W

20. RAREEFAEBZZERMEE

(4&)
BRAABEIFABEZEHEEN
pakE )]

ZOBBURNEEE RS RBEENER
EAURZEENARRERERR -

2023 2022

—EC-=F o = ot =

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Investment funds at fair value — unlisted ZAR BEMHNREES—IE LT 1,541 1,513

Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of HK$46,000,000
(2022: HK$46,000,000) denominated in HK$ were pledged as
collateral for the Group's banking facilities (Note 25).

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits was
3.92% (2022: 2.63%) per annum and these deposits are
maturing within 15 to 353 days (2022: 13 to 352 days).

Restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances

21. BEHRITER

RZEBE-_=Z=F+=-_RA=+—80 "
46,000,000 (=& ==
46,000,000/ 7T) LAFB Tt EZ 8R171F
RETFURER  (EAAEBRITEESR
&2 AR (BitsE25) -

ERBRITERZIEEMNEAEF LS
3.92% (ZE=-—%F :263%) EF
HZBHEANFI5KEISIR(CE-—
£ 1 13K E352K) ©

22. ZRFIWITHEE - RERRITHE
2

2023 2022

—E_=HF —EoF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short term bank deposits (note i) HISRI T A (B i) 48,158 =
Restricted bank balances (note ii) SZRR HIER 1T 45 8 (B wii) 1,106 =
Cash and cash equivalents (note iii) Be MRS EEY (i) 179,980 206,487
229,244 206,487
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B B R

22. Restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances (Continued)

Notes:
(i)  The balance represented bank deposits which are bank
deposits with original maturities between three to twelve

months which are time deposits (2022: Nil).

Short term bank deposits are denominated in the following

currencies:
HK$ BT
usb ET

(i)  The amount under the restricted bank balances as at 31
December 2023 of HK$1,106,000 (2022: Nil) represents
funds deposited in bank accounts designated for operating
the Group’s cross-border payment business. The balance is
denominated in RMB.

(iii)  Included in cash and cash equivalents were HK$135,410,000
(2022: HK$115,052,000) bank deposits with original maturities
within three months which are placed as time deposits.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and bank balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

HK$ BIT
RMB AR
usD =i
Others EA
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22. ZRFIBITHEER - RERRITE
ER @)

GEE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

EHRERTERRIBAAE=ZE+=
BAMRITER(EATHER (ZF
ZZF ) o

RERITERIRATERSIE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHETT
28,000 -
20,158 -
48,158 -

R-_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H0 ' ZR
HIERITAE SRR £ %E1,106,000/8 T (= F
ZF E) BRETRITERETA
AREEREBBEEL NERNES -
EHRAAREE -

Re RSBV REEATHTE
REHBRA=ZMARNZRITER
135,410,000t (=T =4 :
115,052,000/ 7T) °

AEE R MRTESRZREASRIZ

IATNEEEHE -
2023 2022
—E_=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
155,928 164,572
12,167 12,700
5,460 25,289
6,425 3,926

179,980 206,487
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22. Restricted bank balances and cash and bank

balances (Continued)

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$19,989,000 (2022: HK$22,899,000) are kept in the
bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and bank balances

Maximum exposure to credit risk

23. Share capital

At 1 January and 31 December 2022

At 1 January and 31 December 2023

(a) Issued shares

B MIRTTHES

RSN EREERR

The authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$500,000,000, comprising 25,000 million shares
with a par value of HK$0.02 per share. All issued shares

are fully paid.

B B R W

22. ZRFVRITERR - BERBRTE
ER @)

REEES4519,989,0008 T (=&
~ "4 122,899,000/ 7T) F R HEH
WIRTTRRZIRITRL,  BEHESAR
HNEE I o

2023 2022
—E_=HF —=FE-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
229,244 206,487
228,863 206,137
23. B
Number of
shares issued
CRITRHOEE
Thousand's HK$000
&K FET
1,332,266 26,645
1,332,266 26,645

(a) E&TRH
RRBEERAA500,000,000
BT AERMEMEC.02BTHE
25,000,000,000/%40R% © FTHE B 2%
TRDEEHR -
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23. Share capital (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 May 2015, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the 2015 Scheme”) under which the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible persons to
subscribe for the Company’s shares subject to the terms
and conditions as stipulated therein. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2015 Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years from the date of its
adoption.

The Company was authorised to grant share options
under the 2015 Scheme for subscription of up to a total
of 133,226,600 shares, representing 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption.
The directors of the Company are authorised at their
absolute discretion, to invite any eligible participants as
defined in the Scheme, to take up options to subscribe
for shares in the Company. The subscription price will
be determined by the Board, but shall be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date on which the relevant options are deemed to
be granted and accepted in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme (“the Commencement Date"”), which
must be a day on which the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (b) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet for the five Trading Days immediately
preceding the Commencement Date; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares. A consideration of HK$10
is payable on acceptance of the grant of option. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Scheme may not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the 2015 Scheme. The
number of shares may be refreshed by the approval of
the shareholders and the refreshed limit of the number
of shares must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the approval
of the refreshed limit.

As at 31 December 2023, no share option under the
2015 Scheme was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed (2022: Nil).
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23. RA(#)
(b) FERAEETE

RZEBE—RAFRA-_+—HBH81IT2
AARIREBAFRE L AAF
IR R A E R FT BT B ([ =
—RFFED Bl RARES
AIEAEERA TR ERE - SR
BARERG AR ZE—AF
FTEIRE 2 R RIGHEETIRIR © BR
SITEUETUEETIN - —FE—RFF
2 B B R E HR AT T F AR 4
R

AARERERE-_ZT AT
AREBEREAREZESZAH
133,226,6008% %1% - (A4 B
HARBBBITRAZI10% ° &
EARREZZRBBEEETNE
BERsiE (TE RERETE)Z
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LR IS E R B RE
24. Reserves 24. #1E
Restated
L)
Capital Merger
Share reserve reserve  Statutory Other  Exchange Retained
premium (note() (notellj) reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
FAEE  GRER
RERE ) ) iRERE RMRE  ENGE  RERA 2

500 S0

Tz Té7

K000 HS000

I

500 HKS00 RSO0 HKSO00

THr T&r iy a3

At 1 January 2022 WE-"%-f-f 126552 A15 3700 U L34 1,118 48,116 59,459
Proft for the year RERR - - - - - - 918
Curtency trandltion diferences EREEEE - - - = = (824) - (824)
Actuaral gan on postemployment benefit BB AETIERDEENE
bligatons, net of tax MR - - - = 12! = = 3
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 E+ZR=1-AR
I g 126,552 115 3,700 pl! 2407 29 477,934 645,026

Profitfor the year RERH - - - - - - 58,390 58,390

Curency transaton diferences EhpEzE - - - - - (147) - (147)

Actuarialloss on postemployment benefit  ERAETERDRESE

obligatons, net of tax BT E - - g = (133) g = (133)

At 31 December 2023 HZZZ=E+2f=1-R 126,552 W15 3700 U 2274 147 536,324 703,136

Notes: Bt e -

(i)  The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents contribution () AEBZERAREBEIERR—NAANE
from the shareholders in connection with the acquisition of the W —EE AR 2 8 T B R A
remaining interests in a subsidiary in 1999. B ER

(i) The merger reserve of the Group arising from the Group (il AKERSESHEmMESE 2SS

reorganisation is determined by the difference between the
nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares deemed to have been issued.

THREEBAEA 2 B R RRHEE
HBEE BT Z AR BN EERE M
ZERRE °
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B B R

25. Borrowings 25. B8
2023 2022
—E-=F —E- 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current RED
Trust receipt loans, secured (note (i)) B TEUIEE B EEO)) 31,252 41,492
Trust receipt loans, unsecured EIRSTEURIEER 30,916 11,861
62,168 53,353
Notes: BisE
(i) The carrying amounts of the trust receipt loans approximate () GEARUEERzZEEHSERESZAR
their fair values. As at 31 December 2023, there were BHEE R-BE_=F+-_A=+—
banking facilities of approximately HK$312,300,000 (2022: B RITRVE RFEA) /312,300,000
HK$262,300,000) of which approximately HK$245,783,000 TL(ZZE == : 262,300,000/ 7T) -
(2022: HK$207,845,000) had not been utilised. These banking HA#%245,783,0008 L (=T ==
facilities were secured by corporate guarantees and bank 4 1 207,845,000 BIT) mARBA © %
deposits of HK$46,000,000 (2022: HK$46,000,000). ZHRTMEHRAERRRITERLD
46,000,000 TTIEIE (=2 ==
46,000,000/87T) °
(i) The borrowings are denominated in the following currency: (i) BEUATIERIIE :
2023 2022
—E-= 2o —F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
HK$ BT 62,168 53,353
(iiy  The effective interest rates (per annum) of bank borrowings at (i) RUERER @ FITEEZERFHE
the financial reporting date are as follows: T
2023 2022
—EB-=H —T-—F
Trust receipt loans EFEBIRERK 6.65% 6.23%

CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED #EIE ¥ KB ER 2 A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 B R R M T
26. Deferred taxation 26. EIEHIE
2023 2022
—=E2_= —E- 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled HRTZEAREE L
after 12 months BIERIEAE (2,859) (2,117)
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences under the ELEHIBHA B EENEENBARE
liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries MEESRFABEE CHRAMER 2
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be RE R HBREACEMRELDEM)
realised or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that TER BB -
have been substantively enacted by the financial reporting
date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BB ATE RN T BN ERF 1R & 2= B A HR
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against HIABEEE - MEEHIEEEKRT
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and MIBAGEYRA—MBEEEBZ - —K
liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation ERBATKTRAMNERT AT B ER
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable MRELUFEHAEE - QIR BEEHRIBEE
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on BLRAETIA B B G BN o
a net basis.
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: IRERIAAR B 2 S FEMT -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E_F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H (2,117) (1,663)
Charged to income statement (Note 10) 7EUES & 1Bk (FI7E10) (768) (420)
Credited/(charged) to equity ez E A (HIBR) 26 (34)
At 31 December Wt+ZA=+—H (2,859) (2,117)
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26. Deferred taxation (Continued) 26. ELEBLIRE (&)
The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the year, BEEBIBEEERFAZE8) CRET RN
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances MHEEEEAEE 2 AR T

within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE

Remeasurement

loss/(gain) of post-

employment

Accelerated tax benefit
depreciation obligations Lease Total

BRABANES
MEHERE WETERE fE 8
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 W_E-_%—-F—8 (10) (441) (1,212) (1,663)
Charged to income statement EWERBMR (142) = (278) (420)
Charged to equity i Ealabiliy = (34) = (34)

At 31 December 2022 and R-E-—F+-A=+-BkK

1 January 2023 —“$-=%-A-H (152) (475) (1,490) (2,117)
Charged to income statement FlRGERPR (686) = (82) (768)
Credited to equity P A - 26 - 26
At 31 December 2023 N-Z-=F#+-A=1+-H (838) (449) (1,572) (2,859)
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred taxation (Continued) 26.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$1,922,000 (2022: HK$2,538,000) in respect
of accumulated tax losses amounting to HK$8,758,000
(2022: HK$11,195,000) as at 31 December 2023, that can
be carried forward against future taxable income. As at 31
December 2023, the accumulated tax losses amounting to
HK$5,611,000 (2022: HK$8,131,000) will be expired within
five years. There is no expiry period for the other tax losses.

Trade payables, other payables and contract 27.
liabilities

Trade payables B SN FRIA

Contract liabilities aRARE

Accrued expenses and other payables  FEIR & & Efth B 7B

B B R W

ELER IR ()

BEFMBSHEEAEABEBERG
P B BARERE G F ZIEm
PATEE  MIBEFHEELER - &5
Bt kg —_E-_=F+-_A=+—8H
AAE LB RRERT A 2 R
sHFEIEE 488,758,000 T (ZE ==
£ :11,195,000/8 7T) HERIELEFTE
FRIB&EE1,922,0008 (T ==
% :2,538,0008L) - R-_ZT=-_=F
+—A=+—8: ZSERFAHEE
#BiES5,611,0008 (-
8,131,000 7T) KR AFAEIH - &
bR B ESIE Y m AR o

B EARE - HEARER
BRAE

2023 2022
—=E_= —E-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
30,144 32,056
17,798 20,728
20,156 20,850
68,098 73,634
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27. Trade payables, other payables and contract 27. ESENRE - HbENLFRER

liabilities (Continued) AER=RitE /)
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on AEEBZREMNFRENRKRZEZEDHN
the invoice date, is as follows: DT -
2023 2022
—E-=F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 30 days 30K 23,600 22,775
31 to 60 days 31 KE60K 2,190 5,266
61 to 90 days 61 XE90K 3,140 3,569
Over 90 days HHEI0K 1,214 446
30,144 32,056
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade payables, other REEZESENFIE - EfERFIR
payables and contract liabilities are denominated in the keaRBEsRESERATNEE
following currencies: B :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ IT 37,226 40,063
usD ETT 22,287 24,151
RMB AR 926 3,131
Others Hth 7,659 6,289
68,098 73,634
28. Commitments 28. i
Capital commitments B EE
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have capital R-ZBE-=%F+=-—FA=+—H ' &x&
commitments (2022: HK$0.533 million) contracted for but BER2EHFINEGR(ZEZ
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements. 533,000 70) (BN AR ER G B SRR B
R B AEIE -

176 CHINA PIPE GROUP LIMITED F EZE X &£ @BAER A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B R W

29. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 29. mEBHSRERMT
flows
Cash flows from operations REXEBELECHERE
2023 2022
—E_=F .-
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit before income tax AL A 68,844 58,242
Adjustments for: BTIEL A -
Amortisation of intang